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JCL LAW FIRM, APC

Jean-Claude Lapuyade (State Bar #248676)
Monnett De La Torre (State Bar #272884)
Andrea Amaya Silva (State Bar #348080)
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 3600

San Diego, CA 92121

Telephone: (619) 599-8292

Facsimile: (619) 599-8291
jlapuyvade@jcl-lawfirm.com
mdelatorre@jcl-lawfirm.com
aamavya(@]cl-lawfirm.com

ZAKAY LAW GROUP, APLC
Shani O. Zakay (State Bar #277924)
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 3600
San Diego, CA 92121

Telephone: (619) 255-9047
Facsimile: (858) 404-9203
shani@zakaylaw.com
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By DEPUTY . D

Attorneys for Plaintiffs MARTIN MARISCAL, DANIEL GARCIA, and RAFAEL ROJAS

[Additional counsel on next page]

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN |

MARTIN MARISCAL, DANIEL GARCIA,
RAFAEL ROJAS, JOSE HERNANDEZ,
AND LUIS VAZQUEZ individuals, on behalf
of themselves and on behalf of all persons
similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
v.

JANCO INDUSTRIES, INC., a California
corporation; TERRY ALEXANDER, an
individual;, ANDREW ALEXANDER, an
individual; and DOES 1-50, Inclusive,

Defendants.

{

Case No: STK-CV-UQE-2022-7290
Related with: STK-CV-UOE-2022-9998;
STK-CV-UQE-2022-8450; and
STK-CV-UQE-2022-8790 |

TPROTUSED] ORDER GRANTING
PLAINTIFFES’ MOTION FOR
PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF CLASS
ACTION AND P‘«J&GA ACTION
SETTLEMENT |

Date: AUG 0 6

2024 |
Time: gD Prvn !
r
Hon. George‘ J. Abdallah

Judge: ;
10A '

Dept.:

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY !APPROVAL OF CLASS

ACTION AND PAGA SETTLEMENT
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GAINES & GAINES

Daniel Gaines, Esq.

Alex Katofsky, Esq.

4550 East Thousand Oaks Blvd, Suite 100
Westlake Village, CA 91362

T: (866) 400-4450
daniel@gaineslawfirm.com
alex@gaineslawfirm.com

Attorneys for PLAINTIFF JOSE HERNANDEZ

DREW LEWIS, PC

Drew Lewis, Esq.

2999 Douglas Blvd, Suite 180
Roseville, CA 95661

T: (833) 600-7400
drew@drewlewis.law

Attorneys for PLAINTIFF LUIS VAZQUEZ
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This matter having come before the Honorable Judge George Abdallah of the Superior Court of

the State of California, in and for the County of San Joaquin, at a.m./p.m. on ,

2024, with Jean-Claude Lapuyade, Esq., of the JCL Law Firm, APC, Shani O. Zal;ay, Esq. of the Zakay
Law Group, APLC, Daniel Gaines, Esq. of Gaines & Gaines, APLC, and Drew Lewis, Esq. of Drew
Lewis, PC as counsel for Plaintiffs Martin Mariscal, Daniel Garcia, Rafael Rojas, Jose Hernandez and
Luis Vazquez (“Plaintiffs™), and Roger M. Masukhani, Esq., Bimali Walgampaiza, Esq., and Heather
T. Daiza, Esq. of Gordon Rees Scully Mansukhani, LLP, appearing for IDefendants JANCO
INDUSTRIES, INC., TERRY ALEXANGER and ANDREW ALEXANDER (“Defendants™). The
Court, having carefully considered the briefs, argument of counsel and all the matters presented to the
Court, and good cause appearing, hereby GRANTS Plaintiffs’ Motion for Prelliminary Approval of
Class Action Settlement. '

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

1. The Court preliminarily approves the Stipulation of Settlement of Class and PAGA
Action Claims and Release of Claims (“Settlement Agreement” or “Agreement”), a true and correct
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “1”. This is based on the Court’s IL:leterminaticm that the
Settlement Agreement is within the range of possible final approval, pursuan't to the provisions of
Section 382 of the California Code of Civil Procedure and California Rules of Court, rule 3.769.

2. This Order incorporates by reference the definitions in the Agreement, and all terms
defined therein shall have the same meaning in this Order as set forth in the Agr:eement.

3. Subject to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, the Gross Se:tllcment Amount that
Defendants shall pay is Two Million Dollars and Zero Cents ($2,000,000.00). It appears to the Court
on a preliminary basis that the settlement amount and terms are fair, adequate, and reasonable as to all
Class Members when balanced against the probable outcome of further litigation relating to
certification, liability, and damages issues. It further appears that investigation and research have been
conducted such that counsel for the Parties are able to reasonably evaluate their 'respective positions. It
further appears to the Court that settlement at this time will avoid substantial Iadditional costs by all

Parties, as well as avoid the delay and risks that would be presented by the ﬁlr;ther prosecution of the

I
litigation. It further appears that the Settlement has been reached as the result of|intensive, serious, and
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non-collusive arms-length negotiations.

4. The Court preliminarily finds that the Settlement appears to be within the range of
reasonableness of a settlement that could ultimately be given final approval by this Court. The Court
has reviewed the monetary recovery that is being granted as part of the Settlement and preliminarily
finds that the monetary settlement awards made available to the Class Members are fair, adequate, and
reasonable when balanced against the probable outcome of further litigation reiating to certification,
liability, and aamages issues. '

S. Plaintiffs seek a Class Counsel Award in the amount of up-to 35% of the Total Settlement
Amount, currently estimated at Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($700,000.00), plus
reimbursement of actually incurred litigation cost in an amount of up to Thirty Thousand Dollars and
Zero Centers ($30,000.00), and proposed Class Representative Service ;\ward to the Class
Representatives Martin Mariscal, Daniel Garcia, Rafael Rojas, and Jose Hernandez of not more than
Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) each, and a propose Class Representative Service Award to
Class Representative Luis Vazquez of not more than Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00). While
these awards appear to be within the range of reasonableness, the Court will not approve the Class
Counsel Award or the Class Representative Service Award until the Final Appr(;val Hearing.

6. The Court recognizes that Plaintiffs and Defendants stipulate and agree to certification
of a class for settlement purposes only. This stipulation will not be deemed admissible in this, or any
other proceeding should this Settlement not become final. For settlement puriposes only, the Court
conditionally certifies the following Class: ‘

All non-exempt employees who are or previously were employed by
Defendant Janco Industries, Inc. and performed work in California during
the period beginning August 19, 2018 to January 12, 2024 1

7. The Court concludes that, for settlement purposes only, the Class rlneets the requirem'ents
for certification under section 382 of the California Code of Civil Procedure iln that: (a) the Class is
ascertainable and so numerous that joinder of all members of the Class Mernbelrs is impracticable; (b)
common questions of law and fact predominate, and there is a well-defined ;community of interest

amongst the Class Members with respect to the subject matter of the litigatioﬁ; (c) the claims of the

4
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Class Representative are typical of the claims of the Class Members; (d) the Class Representative will

fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class Members; (€) a class action is superior to olther
available methods for the efficient adjudication of this controversy; and (f) CIasei Counsel are qualified
to act as counsel for the Class Representative in his individual capacity and as thJe representative of the
Class Members. | |

8. The Court provisionally appoints Plaintiffs Martin Mariscal, | Daniel Garcia, Jose
Hernandez, Rafael Rojas and Luis Vazquez as the representatives of the Class. | I

9. The Court provisionally appoints Jean-Claude Lapuyade, Esq., of the JCL Law Firm,
APC, Shani Zakay, Esq. of the Zakay Law Group, APLC, Drew Lewis, Esq. ofj' Drew Lewis, PC and
Daniel Gaines, Esq. of Gaines & Faines, APLC as Class Counsel for the Class ]\J)Iembers.

10.  The Court hereby approves, as to form and content, the Proposedj Class Notice (*Class
Notice™) attached to the Agreement as Exhibit “A”. The Court finds that the notice appears to fully
and accurately inform the Class Members and Aggrieved Employees of all m%terial elements of the
proposed Settlement, including the right of any Class Member to be excluded from the Class by
submitting a written request for exclusion, and of each Class Member’s right andj opportunity to object
to the Settlement. The Court further finds that the distribution of the notices subs‘ﬁantially in the manner
and form set forth in the Agreement and this Order meets the requirements of dﬁp process, is the most
reasonable notice under the circumstances, and shall constitute due and sufficieri:t notice to all persons
entitled thereto. The Court orders the mailing of the notices by first class mail,‘%pursuant to the terms
set forth in the Agreement. l

11. The‘Court hereby appoints Apex Class Action LLC, as Settlement Administrator. Within
fifteen (15) calendar days after the Pfeliminary Approva}l Date, Defendant s]j1al] confirm with the
Settlement Administrator the Class Data, including information regarding |Class Members that
Defendant will in good faith compile from its records, including each Class Member’s full name; Ilast
known mailing address; Social Security Number; and start dates and end dates of employment. No later
than twenty-one (21) calendar days after receiving the Class Data from Defendant, the Settlement
Administrator shal] mail copies of the Notice Packet to all Class Members via regular First-Class U.S.

Mail.
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12. The Court hereby preliminarily approves the proposed procedure ij‘or exclusion from the
Settlement. Any Class Member may individually choose to opt out of and l?e excluded from the
Settlement as provided in the Notice by following the instructions for requesting exclusion from the
Settlement of the Released Class Claims that are set forth in the Notice. All reque;sts for exclusion must
be postmarked or received by the Response Deadline which is forty-five (45) clalendar days after the
Settlement Administrator mails the Notice Packets to Class Members or, in ;the case of re-mailed
Notice, not more than fifteen (15) days from the original Response Deadline. Any such person who
chooses to opt out of and be excluded from the Settlement will no‘t be enti:tled to an Individual
Settlement Payment under the Settlement and will not be bound by the Settlemerit, or have any right to
object, appeal or comment thereon. Class Members who have not requested exc‘]usion shall be bound
by all determinations of the Court, the Agreement, and Judgment.

13.  Any Class Member who has not opted out may appear at the final approval hearing and
may object or express the Class Member's views regarding the Settlement and may present evidence
and file briefs or other papers that may be proper and relevant to the issues to be ‘heard and determined
by the Court as provided in the Notice. Class Members will have forty-five (45) (?alendar days from the
date the Settlement Administrator mails the Class Notice to postmark their wrijtten objections to the
Settlement Administrator.

14. A final approval hearing shall be held before this Court on , 2 - L{ ‘ ZV( at:

/\
/f'w C@lPM in Department 10A of the San Joaquin County Superior Court to determine all

necessary matters concerning the Settlement, including: whether the proposed se;ttlement of the Action
on the terms and conditions provided for in the Agreement is fair, adequate and r‘jeasonable and should
be finally approved by the Court; whether an Order Granting Final Approval sho}uld be entered herein;
whether the plan of allocation contained in the Agreement should be approved| as fair, adequate and
reasonable to the Class; and to finally approve the Class Counsel Award, Class Representative Ser\:/ice
Award, and the Claims Administration Expenses. All papers in support of the motion for final approval
and the Motion for Class Counse] Award and Class Representative Service Aw?rd shall be filed with
the Court and served on all counsel following the expiration of the Response Deadline.

15, In the event the Settlement does not become effective in accordance with the terms of the

] '
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Agreement, or the Settlement is not finally approved, or is terminated, canceled, or fails to become
effective for any reason, this Settlement Agreement shall be rendered null and void and shall be vacated,
and the Parties shall revert to their respective positions as of before entering if‘lto the Agreement. In
such an event, the Court’s orders regarding the Settlement, including this PreIiménary Approval Order,
shall not be used or referred to in litigation for any purpose. Nothing in this pa‘ragraph is intended to
alter the terms of the Settlement Agreement with respect to the effect of the Settl%memt Agreement if it

s 1
is not approved. \

|
16.  The Court reserves the right to adjourn or continue the date of the final approval hearing
and all dates provided for in the Agreement without further notice to Class Members and retains

jurisdiction to consider all further applications arising out of or connected with the proposed Settlement.

Dated: 6263 . é‘l, ‘52051% }é&a ﬁé—éﬁ%/

JUDGE OF%E SUPERIOR COURT

|
\
|
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JCL LAW FIRM, APC

Jean-Claude Lapuyade (State Bar #248676)
Sydney Castillo-Johnson (State Bar #343881)
Monnett De La Torre (State Bar # 272884)
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 3600

San Diego, CA 92121

Telephone: (619) 599-8292

Facsimile: (619} 599-8291
jlapuyade@jcl-lawfirm.com

scastillo@jcl-lawfirm.com

mdelatorre@jci-lawfirm.com

ZAKAY LAW GROUP, APLC
Shani O. Zakay (State Bar #277924)
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 3600
San Diego, CA 92121

Telephone: (619) 255-9047
Facsimile: (858) 404-9203

shani@zakaylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs Martin Mariscal, Daniel Garcia, and Rafael Rojas

[Additional Counsel listed on following page]

|
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN |

MARTIN MARISCAL, DANIEL GARCIA,
JOSE HERNANDEZ, RAFAEL ROIJAS, and
LUIS VAZQUEZ, individuals, on behalf of
themselves, and on behalf of all persons
similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
v.

JANCO INDUSTRIES, INC., a California
corporation; TERRY ALEXANDER, an
individual;, ANDREW ALEXANDER, an
individual; and DOES 1 through 50, Inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No.: STR-CV-UOE-2022-7290
[Action Filed August 19, 2|022]
STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT OF

CLASS AND PAGA ACTION CLAIMS
AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS

1
!
1
|
i
|
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GAINES & GAINES, APLC

Daniel F. Gaines (State Bar #251488)
Alex P. Katofsky (State Bar #202754)
4550 East Thousand Oaks Blvd., Suite 100
Westlake Village, CA 91362

Telephone: (818) 703-8985

Facsimile: (818) 703-8984
daniel@gaineslawfirm.com
alex@gaineslawfirm.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff Jose Hernandez

DREW LEWIS, P.C.

Drew Lewis (State Bar #309288)
2999 Douglas Blvd., Suite 180
Roseville, CA 95661

Telephone: (650) 665-9000
drew(@drewlewis.law

Attorneys for Plaintiff Luis Vazquez

1 “
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This Stipulation of Settlement of Class and PAGA Action Claims and Release of Clairr'ls is
entered into by and between Plaintiffs MARTIN MARISCAL, DANIEL GARCIA, JOSE
HERNANDEZ, RAFAEL ROJAS, and LUIS VAZQUEZ (hereinafter “Plaintiff” and/or
“Plaintiffs”), individuals, on behalf of the Settlement Class, and in their repriesentative capacity on
behalf of the State of California and the Aggrieved Employees, and} Defendants JANCO
INDUSTRIES, INC. (“Defendant Janco”), TERRY ALEXANDER, and ANDREW ALEXANDER
(hereinafter “Defendant” and/or “Defendants™):

|
|
|
L DEFINITIONS i

A. “Actions” shall mean the putative class action lawsuits designlated Mariscal, et al. v,

1

Janco Industries, Inc., San Joaquin County Superior Court, Ca:se No. STR-CV-UOE-
|

2022-7290, filed August 19, 2022, Hernandez, et al. v. Janco Industries, Inc., San
Joaquin County Superior Court, Case No. STK—CV-U:OE-2022—8790, filed
September 30, 2022, and Vazquez, et al. v. Janco Industries, [nr;:.. San Joaquin County
Superior Court, Case No. STK-CV-UOE-2022-9998, filed Oct;ober 31, 2022.

B. “Claims Administration Expenses” shall mean the amount: paid to the Claims
Administrator from the Gross Settlement Amount for admini:stering the Settlement
pursuant to this Agreement currently estimated not to exceed $513,000.00.

C. “Agreement” or “Settlement Agreement” means this Stipula:tion of Settlement of
Class and PAGA Action and Release of Claims. |

1

D. “Attorneys’ Expenses” means the award of expenses that the Court authorizes to be
paid to Class Counsel for the expenses they have incurred of l!xp to $30,000.00.

E. “Attorneys’ Fees” means the award of fees that the Court authorizes to be pai;d to
Class Counsel for the services they have rendered to Plaintiffs and the Settlemnent

|
Class in the Action not to exceed 35% of the Gross Settlement Amount, cun-c:ntly

estimated to be $700,000.00. Attorneys’ Fees will be divided lTetween Class Counsel

2
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as follows 24.6% to JCL Law Firm, APC, 24.6% to Zakay LavY Group, APLC, 32.8%
to Gaines & Gaines, APLC, and 18% to Drew Lewis, PC).

“Class” or the “Class Members” means all non-exempt employees who arie or

previously were employed by Defendant Janco and pcrfomed work in California

during the Class Period. |

“Class Counsel” shall mean JCL Law Firm, APC, Zakay Lawj:Group, APLC, Gaines
|

& Gaines, APLC, and Drew Lewis, PC. j

“Class Data™ means information regarding Class Members tha}t Defendant Janco will
in good faith compile from its records and provide to the Cléims Administrator. Tt
shall be formatted as a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet and sha;Il include: each Class
Member’s full name; last known address; Social Security Number; start dates and end
dates of employment.

“Class Period” means the period beginning August 19, 2018 t0 J anuary 12, 2024,
“Class Representatives” shall mean Plaintiffs Martin Mariscal, Daniel Garcia, Rafael
Rojas, Jose Hernandez, and Luis Vazquez. 4‘

“Court” means the Superior Court for the State of California, (;Zounty of San Joaquin
currently presiding over the Action. J

“Defendant™ and/or “Defendants” shall mean Janco Industrics,?lnc., Terry Alexander,
and Andrew Alexander. |
“Effective Date” means the date of final approval if no objections are filed to the

settlement. If objections are filed and overruled, and no appeal is taken of the final

approval order, then the effective date of final approval will|be the date the Court

|
enters the order and judgment granting final approval of the settlement. If an appeal

is taken from the Court’s overruling of objections to the settlement, then the effective
|

date of final approval will be twenty (20) days after the appeal is withdrawn or after
1

an appellate decision affirming the final approval decision becomes final.
5 .
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“Funding Date” shall mean the date by which Defendants must pay each installment
of the Gross Settlement Amount to the Claims Administrator in accord with the terms
of this Agreement. Janco, Terry Alexander, and Andrew Alexander will each be
jointly and severaily liable for the entire Gross Settlement Amount, which includes
payment for all claims, payment of the Claims Administrationi Expenses, Attorneys’
Fees, Attorneys’ Expenses, Service Awards, and PAGA Payr@ent, and in addition to
the Gross Settlement amount, Defendants shall include the %:rnployer share of the
payroll taxes which will be advised by the Claims Admﬁinistrator. The Gross
Settlement Amount shall be paid to the Claims Administrator m three (3) installments,
The first installment of $666,666.66 shall be made within fmllrteen (14) days of the
Effective Date (“First Installment™). The second installment of $666,666.66 shall be
made within six months of the First Installment (“Second Instailment”). The third and
final installment of $666,666.67 shall be made within six r;lonths of the Second
Installment. Each payment shall include a proportionate share of employer payroll

|
taxes due. i

1

|
“Gross Seftlement Amount”™ means Two Million DOI]%M’S and Zero Cents

($2,000,000.00) that Defendants must pay into the Qualified Settlement Fund (QSF)
|
in connection with this Settlement, inclusive of the sum of Claims Administration

Expenses, Attorneys’ Fees, Attorneys’ Expenses, Service A{hlards, and the PAGA
Payment and exclusive of the employer’s share of payroll tax, %f any, triggered byl any
payment under this Settlement. The Gross Settlement Amoun'é shall be all-in with no
reversion to Defendants. The employer’s share of payroll taxjes for net wages shall
not be paid from the Gross Settlement Amount, and shall remain the ’:sole

responsibility of Defendants.

4
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P. “Individual Settlement Payments™ means the amount payable from the Net Settlerent
Amount to each Settlement Class Member and excludes any ?mounts distributed to

the PAGA Group Members pursuant to PAGA. .
!

Q. “Net Settlement Amount” or “NSA” means the Gross Settlement Amount, less
|
Attorneys’ Fees, Aftorneys’ Expenses, Service Awards, PAGA Payment, and Claims

Administration Expenses. i

: |
R. “Notice Packet” means the notice to be provided to the Class Members by the Claims

Admunistrator in the form set forth as Exhibit A to this Agreemcnt (other than

formatting changes to facilitate printing by the Claims Adminiistrator).
S. “Operative Complaint” shall mean the Consolidated Complain!t that shall be filed by
Plaintiffs within fourteen (14) days of the execution of this A!greement. The parties

shall stipulate and agree for leave to file a consolidated complaint consolidating all

parties and claims into a single pleading (“Consolidated Complaint”). The

|
T. “PAGA”™ means the California Labor Code Private Attorneys} General Act of 2004,

Consolidated Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

Labor Code § 2698 et seq. i

U. “PAGA Group Member(s)” means all non-exempt employees Iwhn:) are or previously
were employed by Defendant Janco and performed work in.i California during the
PAGA Period. |

V. “PAGA Payment Ratio” means the respective PAGA Pay Perlllods during the PAGA
Period for each PAGA Group Member divided by the sum t(i)tal of the PAGA 'Pay
Periods for all PAGA Group Members during the PAGA Perioid.

W. “PAGA Pay Periods,” for purposes of calculating the distributi(i)n of the PAGA Gr:oup
Member Payment, as defined herein, means the number of pay periods of employment

during the PAGA Period that each PAGA Group Member worlked in California.

X. “PAGA Period” means the period beginning July 13, 2021 to .'Tanuary 12, 2024.
5
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BB.

CC.

DD.

EE.

“PAGA Payment” shall mean One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) to be

allocated from the Gross Settlement Amount, with 25% of the payment going to the
PAGA Group Members (“PAGA Group Payment™) and 75% of the payment going to
the Labor and Workforce Development Agency (“LWDA Paytznent”). The amount of
the PAGA Payment is subject to Court approval pursuant to (;Zalifomia Labor Code

section 2699(1). Any reallocation of the Gross Settlement Amount to increase the
|

PAGA Payment will not constitute grounds by either party to void this Agreement,

so long as the Gross Settlement Amount remains the same. i
. . . i .
“Parties” means Plaintiffs and Defendants, collectively, and “Party” shall mean either
!

Plaintiffs or Defendants, individually. |

“Payment Ratio” means the respective Workweeks for each Class Member divided

by the sum total Workweeks for all Class Members.

“Plaintiff” and/or “Plaintiffs” shall mean Martin Mariscal, baniel Garcia, Rafael

Rojas, Jose Hernandez, and Luis Vazquez.
“QSF” means the Qualified Settlement Fund established, desig:nated, and maintained
by the Claims Administrator to fund the Gross Settlement Am!ount.

“Released Class Claims” shall mean all class claims alleged, orireasonably could have
been alleged based on the facts alleged in the Operative Comf:alaint in the Action, or
reasonably could have been alleged based on the facts alleged in the Operative
Complaint, which occurred during the Class Period, and expre;sly excluding all other
claims, including claims for vested benefits, wrongful termmatlon unemployment
insurance, disability, social security, workers’ compensation, and class claims outs1de

of the Class Period. ' :

“Released PAGA Claims” means all PAGA claims alleged in the Operative
Complaint and Plaintiffs’ PAGA notices to the LWDA, or reasqnably could have been

alleged based on the facts alleged in the Operative Complaint| and Plaintiffs’ PAGA
6
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FF.

GG.

HIL

II.
JI.

notices to the LWDA, which occurred during the PAGA Period, and expressly
excluding all other claims, including claims for vested beneﬁts,; wrongful termination,
unemployment insurance, disability, social security, workers’ compensation, and
PAGA claims outside of the PAGA Period. |
“Released Parties” shall mean the named Defendants, togethjer with their officers,
directors, employees, members, member managers, owners, affiliates and agents. The
Parties intend that the Released Parties shall be defined as broad as legally
permissible. .
“Response Deadline” meang the date forty-five (45) calendar; days after the Claims
Administrator mails Notice Packets to Class Members and tjhe last date on which
Class Members may submit requests for exclusion or objections to the Settlement.
“Service Awards” means awards in the amount of $15,000.00 each or in an amount
that the Court authorizes to be paid to Class Representatives Martin Mariscal, Daniel
Garcia, Rafael Rojas, and Jose Hernandez, and an award in the;amount of $30,000.00
or in an amount the Court authorizes to be paid to Class Representative Luis Vazquez.
The Service Awards are in addition to the Individual Settlement Payments and the
individual PAGA Group Payments, in recognition of the Plaintiffs’ efforts and risks
in assisting with the prosecution of the Action. '
“Settlement” means the disposition of the Actions pursuant to this Agreement.
“Claims Administrator” means Apex Class Action Settlement Administration, 18
Technology Drive, Ste. 164, Irvine, CA 92618; Tel: 1-800-355-0700; Fax: (949)878-
' 3536. The Claims Administrator establishes, designates andI maintains, as a QSF
under Internal Revenue Code section 468B and Treasury Regu‘lation section 1.46ISB—
1, into which the amount of the Gross Settlement Amount is dc;‘aosited for the purpose

of resolving the claims of Settlement Class Members. The Claims Administrator shall

maintain the funds until distribution in an account(s) segregated from the assets of
7
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1II.

KK.

LL.

RECITALS

A.

Defendants and any person related to Defendants. All acerued interest, if any, shall

be paid and distributed to the Settlement Class Memlzters as part of their

respective Individual Settlement Payments, J

1
“Settlement Class Members™ or “Settlement Class” means all Class Members who

have not submitted a timely and valid request for exclusic;n as provided in this
Agreement. ‘

“Workweeks” shall mean any seven (7) consecutive days beéinning on Sunday and
ending on Saturday, in which a Class Member is employed an}d received any form of
compensation from Defendant Janco. i

On July 13, 2022, Plaintifts Mariscal, Gareia, and Rojas filed }a Notice of Violations
with the Labor and Workforce Development Agency (LWDA%) and served the same
on Defendants. ‘ J}
On August 19, 2022, Plaintiffs Mariscal, Garcia, and Rojas ﬁleii their Action, alleging
claims for: {

1. Unfair Competition (Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200 et se?.);

2. Failure to Pay Minimum Wages (Labor Code §§ 1 194,j 1197 and 1197.1)

3. Failure to Pay Overtime Wages (Labor Code §§ 510 et‘ seq.);

4. Failure to Provide Required Meal Periods (Labor Cod? §8§ 226.7, 512 and the

applicable Wage Order);

|
I
5. Failure to Provide Required Rest Periods (Labor Code §§ 226.7, 516 and the
applicable wage order);

0. Failure to Pay Wages When Due (Labor Code §§ 201, 202, 203; 204);

e B, -

7. Failure to Provide Accurate Itemized Statements (Labor Code § 226 and 226.2

et seq.);

8. Failure to Reimburse for Required Expenses (Labor C(I)de § 2802).
8
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On August 16, 2022, Plaintiff Hernandez sent a letter, by oniline submission to the
LWDA and by certified mail to Defendants outlining the facts a:nd theories underlying
his claims.

On September 30, 2022, Plaintiff Hernandez initiated his Action by filing a class
| 1

. . |
action complaint. .

On October 28, 2022, Plaintiff Vazquez sent a letter, by oniine submission to the
LWDA and by certified mail to Defendants outlining the facts a}nd theories underlying

his claims. i
|

On October 31, 2022, Plaintiff Vazquez initiated his Action l;)y filing a class action

|
complaint. |

On March 30, 2023, the Court ordered all matters consolidated:. Currently, all matters

|
are consolidated and reside with the Honorable George Abdalla;lh Jr., Department 10A

of the Stockton Courthouse (the “Action™). i

The Class Representatives believe they have claims based on a;lleged violations of the

California Labor Code, and the Industrial Welfare Commissiion Wage Orders, and
that class certification is appropriate because the prerf:cmisitesI for class certification
can be satisfied in the Action, and this action is manageable as a PAGA representétive
action. }
Defendants deny any liability or wrongdoing of any kind asso!ciated with the claims
élleged in the Action, disputes any wages, damages and penaltielas claimed by the (?Iass
Representative are owed, and further contends that, for anly purpose other than
|

settlement, the Action is not appropriate for class or representlative action treatment.

Defendants contend, among other things, that at all times|it complied with’ the
California Labor Code and the Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders.
The Class Representatives are represented by Class Counsel. Class Counsel

investigated the facts relevant to the Action, including conducting an independent
9
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investigation as to the allegations, reviewing documents and information exchanged

through informal discovery, and reviewing documents and information provided by
|

Defendants pursuant to informal requests for information to i)repare for mediation.
Defendants produced for the purpose of settlement negotiatiorils certain employment
data concerning the Settlement Class, which Class Counsel r;eviewed and analyzed
with the assistance of an expert. Based on their own indepen:dent investigation and
evaluation, Class Counsel is of the opinion that the Settlement \:vith Defendants is fair,
reasonable, and adequate, and is in the best interest of !the Settlement élass
considering all known facts and circumstances, including the risks of significant
delay, defenses asserted by Defendants, uncertainties regarding class certification,
and numerous potential appellate issues. Although it denies any liability, Defendants
agree to this Settlement solely to avoid the inconvenience{s and cost of further

litigation, The Parties and their counsel have agreed to settle t:he claims on the terms
set forth in this Agreement. I
On October 11, 2023, the Parties participated in mediation p!resided over by Steve
Rottman, Esq., an experienced mediator of wage and hour clal.ss and PAGA actions.
The mediation concluded with a settlement, which was subseq15.1ently mcmorializéd in

the form of a Memorandum of Understanding. |

This Agreement replaces and supersedes the Memorandum of Understanding and any
|

other agreements, understandings, or representations between the Parties. This

Agreement represents a compromise and settlement of highly disputed claims.
i
Nothing in this Agreement is intended or will be construed as an admission by

Defendants that the claims in the Action of Plaintiff or the Class Members have r:nerit
or that Defendants bear any liability to Plaintiff or the Class on those claims or any

other claims, or as an admission by Plaintiff that Defendants’ |[defenses in the Action

have merit.
10
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M. The Parties believe that the Settlement is fair, reasonablc\e, and adequate. The
Settlement was arrived at through arm’s-length negotiations, taking into account all
relevant factors. The Parties recognize the uncertainty, risl;, expense, and delay
attendant to continuing the Action through trial and any ap;f)eal. Accordingly, the
Parties desire to settle, compromise and discharge all disputes a!nd claims arising from
or relating to the Action fully, finally, and forever. I

N. The Parties agree to certification of the Class for purposes of this Settlement only. If
for any reason the settlement does not become effective, Defenldants reserve the right
to contest certification of any class for any reason and reserveé all available defenses
to the claims in the Action. |

Based on these Recitals that are a part of this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:

1. TERMS OF AGREEMENT

A. Settlement Consideration and Settlement Payments by Defendants.

1. Settlement Consideration, In full and complete settlem|ent of the Action, and
in exchange for the releases set forth below, Defendant IJ anco will pay the sum
of the Individual Settlement Payments, the Service Awards, the Attorneys’
Fees and Attorneys’ Expenses, PAGA Paymen;ts, and the Claims
Administration Expenses, as specified in this Agrcemént, equal to the Gross
Settlement Amount of Two Million Thousand Dol]arg ($2,000,000.00). IThe
Parties agree that this 1s a non-reversionary Settlement and that no portion of
the Gross Settlement Amount shall revert to Defendants. Other than
Defendant Janco’s share of employer payroll taxes and as provided in Section
III.A.2 below, Defendant Janco shall not be required|to pay more than: the
Gross Settlement Amount.

2. Class Size. Defendants represent that the Settlement Class was comprised of

893 individuals who collectively worked approximately 61,357 workweeks
11 |
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(“Projected Workweeks™) during the Class Period. No later than fifteen (15)

days after execution of this Settlement Agreement, |Defendant Janco ‘will

provide the Claims Administrator with the Class Datal in order to ensure the

Claims Administrator has sufficient time to prepare the foregoing declaration

prior to the filing of the motion for Preliminary Approval. If the Projefcted
Workweeks increase by more than 10% of the estimiated stated herein, the
Gross Settlement Amount shall increase proportionahy for the number of
workweeks over 110% of the 61,357 Projected Worleeeks (67,493). 'For
example, if the total workweeks in the Class Period are 115% of 61,357, the
Gross Settlement Amount shall increase by 5%. The;CIaims Administrator
will provide a declaration under penalty of perjury con:ﬁrming the number of
applicable Class Members, PAGA Group Members, P}XGA Pay Periods, and
workweeks they worked during the applicable Class Period one week prior to
Plaintiffs’ deadline to file their motion for prelimilnary approval of the
settlement. i '

3. Settlement Payment. Defendants Janco, Terry Alexander, and Andrew

| '
Alexander will each be jointly and severally liablei for the entire Gross

Settlement Amount and shall deposit the Gross Settlelment Amount into the
QSF, through the Claims Administrator in three (3) ;installmcnts. The first
installment of $666,666.66 shall be made within fou!rteen (14) days 01:" the
Effective Date (“First Installment”). The second installment of $666,666.66
shall be made six months of the First Installment (“Sec'ond Installrnent”).:The
third and final installment of $666,666.67 shall be made within six months of
the second installment. Any interest accrued will be added to the NSA; and

distributed to the Seftlement Class Members except that if final approval is

reversed on appeal, then Defendants are entitled to

‘prompt return of the
12
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principal and all interest accrued.

4, Defendants’ Share of Payroll Taxes. Defendants’ share of employer side
payroll taxes is in addition to the Gross Settlement Amount and shall be paid
together with the Gross Settlement Amount on each FL;mding Date.

Release by Settlement Class Members. As of the Effec:tive Date, subject to
Defendants’ full payment of the Gross Settlement Amount, and in exchange for the
consideration set forth in this Agreement, Plaintiffs and the Settlement Class Members

release the Released Parties from the Released Class Claims for the Class Period.

Release by the PAGA Class Members. As of the Effective Date,?subject to Defendants’

full payment of the Gross Settlement Amount, and in exchangl:‘: for the consideration
set forth in this Agreement, the Plaintiffs, the LWDA and the State of California
release the Released Parties from the Released PAGA Claims for the PAGA Period.
As aresult of this release, the PAGA Class Members shall be precluded from bringing
claims against Defendants for the Released PAGA Claims.

General Release by Plaintiffs. As of the Effective Date, subjéct to Defendants’ full
payment of the Gross Settlement Amount, and for the consideration set forth in this
Agreement, Plaintiffs waive, release, acquit and forever dischar;ge the Released Parties

from any and all claims, whether known or unknown, which| exist or may exist on
!

either Plaintiffs> behalf as of the date of this Apgreement, inclu:ding but not limited to
any and all tort claims, contract claims, wage claims, wrongful termination claims,
disability claims, benefit claims, public policy claims, retaliation claims, statutory

claims, personal injury claims, emotional distress claims, invasion of privacy claims,

defamation claims, fraud claims, quantum meruit claims, and any and all claims arising

I
under any federal, state or other governmental statute, law, regulation or ordinance,

including, but not limited to claims for violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act, the

California Labor Code, the Wage Orders of California’s Industrial Welfare

13
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Commission, other state wage and hour laws, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the

Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the California Fair Employment
and Housing Act, the California Family Rights Act, the Family Medical Leave Act,
California’s Whistleblower Protection Act, California Business & Professions Code
Section 17200 et seq., and any and all claims arising under any federal, state or other
governmental statute, law, regulation or ordinance. Plaintiffs also waive and relinquish

any and all claims, rights or benefits that they may have underCalifornia Civil Code

§ 1542, which provides as follows: !
|
!
|

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE
|

CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOPIY OR SUSPECT 10
|

EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF) EXECUTING THE

RELEASE AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HE’R, WOULD HAVE
|

MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR

OR RELEASED PARTY.

Thus, notwithstanding the provisions of section 1542, and to implement a full and

complete release and discharge of the Released Parties) Plaintiffs expressly

acknowledge this Settlement Agreement is intended to include in its effect, witlllout

| '
limitation, all claims Plaintiffs do not know or suspect to exist in Plaintiffs’ favor at

| \
the time of signing this Settlement Agreement, and that this Settlement Agreen;lent

contemplates the extinguishment of any such claims. Plaintiffs warrant that each of
them has read this Settiement Agreement, including this waiver of California Civil
Code section 1542, and that Plaintiffs have consulted with or had the opportunity to

consult with counsel of Plaintiffs’ choosing about this Settlement Agreement and
14
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specifically about the waiver of section 1542, rand that Plaintiffs understand this

Settlement Agreement and the section 1542 waiver, and so Plaintiffs freely and
knowingly enter into this Settlement Agreement. Plaintiffs further acknowledge that
Plaintiffs later may discover facts different from or in addition ito those Plaintiffs now
know or believe to be true regarding the matters released or described in'this
Settlement Agreement, and even so Plaintiffs agree that the releases and agreements
contained in this Settlement Agreement shall remain effective in all respects
notwithstanding any later discovery of any different or additional facts. Plaintiffs
expressly assume any and all risk of any mistake in connecti:on with the true facts
involved in the matters, disputes, or controversies releasedl or described in this
Settlement Agreement or with regard to any facts now unknov.;n to Plaintifs relating
thereto.

Representations as to No Other Claims: Neither Plaintiffs nior Class Counsel are
currently aware, as of the date this Agreement is fully executeé, (a) unalleged claims
in addition to, or different from, those which are finally and foreyer settled and released
against the Released Parties by this Agreement or this settlement, and (b) unalleged
facts or legal theories upon which any claims or causes of action could be brought
against any Released Parties, except such facts and theories specifically alleged mI the
operative Complaint in this Action. Plaintiffs and Class Counsel will further represent
that, other than this Action, they have no current intention of asserting any other claims
against any of the Released Parties in any judicial or administrative forum as of the
execution of the Settlement Agreement. Plaintiffs and C]assI Counsel will fur:ther
represent that, as of the signing of the Settlement Agreement,|they do not curre!ntly
know of or represent any persons who have expressed any interest in pursuing

L
litigation or seeking any recovery against any Released Parties. This includes all

Plaintiffs and any claims they may have or had, including any individual claims, which
15
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will be released in the settlement agreement and herein via Cal. Civ. Code section 1542
waiver. The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that the representations
described in this paragraph are essential to this Agreement or this settlement and that

this Agreement would not have been entered into were it not for these representations.
|

Conditions Precedent: This Settlement will become final and e:ffective only upon the

|
occurrence of all of the following events:

1. The Court enters an order granting preliminary approvz;il of the Settlement;

2. The Court enters an order granting final approval of the‘Settlement and a Final
Judgment; i

3. If an objector appears at the final approval hearing, the? time for appeal of the

Final Judgment and Order Granting Final Approval of Class Action
Settlement expires; or, if an appeal is timely filed, there is a final resolution of
any appeal from the Judgment and Order Granting Final Approval of Class

Action Settlement; and ' |

4, Defendants fully fund the Gross Settlement Amount and comply with all
- |
payment provisions herein. !

|
Nullification of Settlement Agreement. If this Settlement Agreement is not

preliminarily or finally approved by the Court, fails to become effective, or is reversed,
|
withdrawn or modified by the Court, or in any way prevents or prohibits Defendants

from obtaining a complete resolution of the Released Class Clzllims, or if Defendants
fail to fully fund the Gross Settlement Amount: 1
1. This Settlement Agreement shall be void ab initio and of no force or effect,
and shall not be admissible in any judicial, administrative or arbitral
proceeding for any purpose or with respect to any :issue, substantive or

procedural; 1

16
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2. The conditional class certiﬁcation (obtained for any purpose) shall be void ab
initio and of no force or effect, and shall not be admlissible in any judicial,
administrative or arbitral proceeding for any purpose or with respect to any
issue, substantive or procedural; | |

3. None of the Parties to this Settlement will be deeme!jd to have waived any
claims, objections, defenses, or arguments in the Action, including with
respect to the issue of class certification; and

4. If Defendants fail to fully fund the Gross Settlement Amount, Defendants
shall bear the sole responsibility for any cost to issue or reissue any curative
notice to the Settlement Class Members and all élai ms Administration
Expenses incurred to the date of nullification.

Certification of the Settlement Class, The Parties stipulate to conditional class
certification of the Ciass for the Class Period for purposes of settlement only. In the
event that this Settlement is not approved by the Court, fails to become effective, or is
reversed, withdrawn or modified by the Court, or in any way prevents or prohibits
Defendants from obtaining a complete resolution of the Released Class Claims, the
conditional class certification (obtained for any purpose) shall be void ab initio and of
no force or effect, and shall not be admissible in any judicial, administrative or arbitral
proceeding for any purpose or with respect to any issue, substantive or procedural.

Tax Liability. The Parties make no representations as to the tax treatment or legal
effect of the payments called for, and Class Members and/or PAGA Group Members
are not relying on any statement or representation by the Parties in this regard. Class
Members and/or PAGA Group Members understand and agree that they wili be
responsible for the payment of any taxes and penalties asses‘sed on the Individual
Settlement Payments and/or PAGA Group Members’ individual shares of the PAGA

Group Payment described and will be solely responsible for ;my penalties or other
17 i
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i

obligations resulting from their personal tax reporting of ;Individual Settlement
Payments and/or PAGA Group Members’ individual shares of the PAGA Group

Payment.

Circular 230 Disclaimer. Each Party to this Agreement (for pﬁlposes of this section,

the “acknowledging party” and each Party to this Agreeiment other than the
acknowledging party, an “other party”) acknowledges and agreels that: (1) no provision
of this Agreement, and no written communication or disclosure between or among the
Parties or their attorneys and other advisers, is or was intendqd to be, nor shall any
such communication or disclosure constitute or be construed 01: be relied upon as, tax
advice within the meaning of United States Treasury Department circular 230 (31 CFR
part 10, as amended); (2) the acknowledging party (a) has relied exclusively upon his,
her or its own, independent legal and tax counsel for advice (including tax advice} in
connection with this Agreement, (b) has not entered into this Agreernent based upon
the recommendation of any other Party or any attorney or advisor to any other Party,
and (c) is not entitled to rely upon any communication or disclosure by any attorney
or adviser to any other party to avoid any tax penalty that may be imposed on the
acknowledging party, and (3) no attorney or adviser to any other Party has imposed
any limitation that protects the confidentiality of any such attoxj'ney’s or adviser’s tax
strategies (regardless of whether such limitation is legally bindihg) upon disclosure by
the acknowledging party of the tax treatment or tax structure of any transaction,
including any transaction contemplated by this Agreement.

Preliminary Approval Motion. Class Counsel shall draft and file the motion for
prelimiﬁary approval within thirty (30) ca‘l.endar days of execution of this Agreement,
or within the statutory timeframe as determined by the Court’s setting of the

preliminary approval hearing, which shall include this Settlement Agreement.

Plaintiffs will provide Defendants with a draft of the Motion at least five business days
18 }
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prior to the filing of the Motion to give Defendants an opportuntity to propose changes
or additions to the Motion.

Claims Administrator. The Claims Administrator shall be responsible for: establishing

and administering the QSF; calculating, processing and mailing payments to the Class
Representatives, Class Counsel, LWDA, PAGA Group Member%, and Class Members;
printing and mailing the Notice Packets to the Class Members as‘ directed by the Court;
receiving and reporting the objections and requests for exclusion; calculating,
deducting and remitting all legally required taxes from Individual Settlement Payments
and distributing tax forms for the Wage Portion, the Penalties P'ortion and the Interest
Portion of the Individual Settlement Payments and/or PAéiA Group Members’
individual shares of the PAGA Group Payment; processing and mailing tax payments
to the appropriate state and federal taxing authorities; provicl;iing declaration(s) as
necessary in support of preliminary and/or final approval of this" Settlement; and other
tasks as the Parties mutually agree or the Court orders the Cl;:ims Administrator to
perform. The Claims Administrator shall keep the Parties timely apprised of the
performance of all Claims Administrator responsibilities by among other things,
sending a weekly status report to the Parties” counsel stating the date of the mailing,
the of number of Elections Not to Participate in Settlement it r:::ceives (including the
numbers of valid and deficient), and number of objections received.

Notice Procedure.

L. Class Data. No later than fifteen (15) calendar days: after the Preliminary
Approval Date, Defendant Janco shall confirm with the Claims Administrator
the Class Data for purposes of preparing and mailingNotice Packets to the

Class Members. |

. !
2. Notice Packets.

19
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The Notice Packet shall contain the Notice of Class Action Settlement

in a form substantially similar to the form attached as Exhibit A. The
Notice of Class Action Settlement shall inform Class Members and
PAGA Group Members that they need not do' anything in order to
receive an Individual Settlement Payment Eimdfor PAGA Group
Members’ individual shares of the PAGA Grou;l) Payment and to keep
the Claims Administrator apprised of their current mailing address, to
which the Individual Settlement Payments and/or PAGA Group
Members’ individual shares of the PAGA Gr%‘oup Payment will be
mailed following each Funding Date. The Notice of Class Action
Settlement shall set forth the release to be given by all members of the
Class who do not request to be excluded from the Settlement Class
and/or PAGA Group Members in exchange for an Individual
Settlement Payment and/or PAGA Group Memliners’ individual shares
of the PAGA Group Payment, the number of Workweeks worked by
each Class Member during the Class Period and PAGA Period, if any,
and the estimated amount of their Individual Settlement Payment if
they do not request to be excluded from the: Settlement and each
PAGA Group Members’ share of the PAGA droup Payment, if any.
The Claims Administrator shall use the Class Data to determine Class
Members” Workweeks and PAGA Workweeks. The Notice will also
advise the PAGA Group Members that they wi}l release the Released
PAGA Claims and will receive their share bf the PAGA Group
Payment regardless of wl;.ether they request toibe excluded from the

|
Settlement. \

20 !
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b) The Notice Packet’s mailing envelope shall 11ncIudf: the following
language: “IMPORTANT LEGAL DOCUMENT- YOU MAY BE
ENTITLED TO PARTICIPATE IN A| CLASS ACTION
SETTLEMENT; A PROMPT REPLY TO! CORRECT YOUR
ADDRESS IS REQUIRED AS EXPLAINED IN THE ENCLOSED

NOTICE.”

Notice by First Class U.S. Mail. Upon receipt of the Class Data, the Claims
Administrator will perform a search based on the Natimjlal Change of Address
Database to update and correct any known or identiﬁ;uble address changes.
No later than twenty-one (21) calendar days receipt of the Class Data’ the
Claims Administrator shall mail copies of the Notice Packet to all Class
Members via regular First-Class U.S. Mail and electroﬁic mail. The Claims
Administrator shall exercise its best judgment to determine the current mailing
address for each Class Member. The address ider'itiﬁed by the Claims

Administrator as the current mailing address shall be presumed to be the best
|
1

1

mailing address for each Class Member.

|
Undeliverable Notices. Any Notice Packets retu;med to the Claims

Administrator as non-delivered on or before the Response Deadline shall be
re-mailed to any forwarding address provided. If no ‘forwarding address is
provided, the Claitns Administrator shall promptly attempt to determine a
correct address by lawful use of skip-tracing, or other sjearch using the name,
address and/or Social Security number of the Class Member involved, and
shall then perform a re-mailing, if another mailing address is identified by: the
Ciaims Administrator. In addition, if any Notice Packets, which are addreésed

to Class Members who are currently employed by Pefendant Janco, are

returned to the Claims Administrator as non—deliver%d and no forwarding
21 ;
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address is provided, the Claims Administrator shall notify Defendants.

Defendants will request that the currently employed Class Member provide a
\

corrected address and transmit to the Claims Administrator any corrected
address provided by the Class Member. Class Membt?rs who received a re-
mailed Notice Packet shall have their Response DeadlinF extended fifteen (15)

days from the original Response Deadline.

5. Disputes Regarding Individual Settlement Paments.{w Class Members will

have the opportunity, should they disagree with Defendant Janco’s records

regarding the start and end dates of employment, to p:rovide documentation
and/or an explanation to show contrary dates. Ifthere is a dispute, the Claims

Administrator will consult with the Parties to determine whether an
|
adjustment is warranted. The Claims Administrator shall determine the

eligibility for, and the amounts of, any Individual Settlement Payments under

the terms of this Agreement. The Claims Administrajtor’s determination of

the eligibility for and amount of any Individual Settlement Payment shall be
|

binding upon the Class Member and the Parties.

6. Disputes Regarding Administration of Settlement. An}jr disputes not resolved

by the Claims Administrator concerning the administrétion of the Settlement
will be presented to the medtator for resolution. Before: any such involvement
of the mediator, counsel for the Parties will confer in good faith to resolve the
disputes without the necessity of involving the mediatoj‘r.

7. Exclusions. The Naotice of Class Action Settlement cg‘)ntained in the Notice
Packet shall state that Class Members who wish to exélude themselves from
the Settlement must submit a written request for exclusion to the Cléims

Administrator by the Response Deadline. The written‘ request for exclusion

|
(1) must contain the name, address, and the last four digits of the Social
22 i
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Security number of the person requesting exclusion; (2) must be signed byl the

Class Member; (3) must be postmarked or fax stam?ed by the Response
Deadline and returned to the Claims Administrator at tl;le specified address or
fax telephone number; and (4) contain a typewritten or handwritten notice
stating in substance that he or she wishes to be excluded from the settlement
of the class action lawsuit entitled Mariscal, et al. v. .;Tanco Industries, Inc.,
currently pending in Superior Court of San Joaquin, Caée No. STR-CV-UQE-

1
2022-7290. The request for exclusion will not be valid if it is not timely

submitted, if it is not signed by the Class Member, or if it does not contain the
name and address and last four digits of the Social Slacurity number of the
Class Member. The date of the postmark on the mailing envelope or fax stamp
on the request for exclusion shall be the exclusive means used to determine
whether the request for exclusion was timely submittejd. Any Class Member
who submits a timely request for exclusion shall bje excluded from the
Settlement Class will not be entitled to an Individual Sf;&lement Payment and
will not be otherwise bound by the terms of the Settlement or have any right
to object, appeal or comment thereon. However, an:y Class Member that
submits a timely request for exclusion that is also a r;nember of the PAGA
Group Members will still receive his/her pro rata share of the PAGA
Settlement, as specified below, and in consideration, will be bound by the
Release by the PAGA Group Members as set forth 11§rein. Settlement Class
Members who fail to submit a valid and timely requejst for exclusion on or
before the Response Deadline shall be bound by all tci,rms of the Settlerjnent
and any final judgment entered in this Action if the Settlement is approved by
the Court. No later than ten (10) calendar days after the Response Deadiine,

\
the Claims Administrator shall provide counsel for the Parties with a final list
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of the Class Members who have timely submitted timely | requests’ for
exclusion. At no time shall any of the Parties or their co‘unsel seek to solicit or
otherwise encourage members of the Class to submit i‘cquests for exclusion
from the Settlement. i
8. Objections. The Notice of Class Action Settlement cxj)ntained in the Notice
Packet shaﬂ state that Class Members who wish to ollject to the Settlement

1

may submit to the Claims Administrator a written statement of objection

(“Notice of Objection”) by the Response Deadline. The postmark date of

mailing shall be deemed the exclusive means for detcrﬁnining that a Notice of
Objection was served timely. The Notice of ObjectionL if in writing, must be
signed by the Settlement Class Member and state: (i) the case name and
number; (2) the name of the Settlement Class Member% (3) the address of the
Settlement Class Member; (4) the last four digits Ofi the Settlement Class
Member’s Social Security number; (5) the basis for th:e objection; and (6) if
the Settlement Class Member intends to aﬁpear at the Final
Approval/Settlement Fairness Hearing. Class Meml::ers who fail to make
objections in writing in the manner specified aboveJ may still make their
objections orally at the Final Approval/Settlement Fair:'ncss Hearing with the
Court’s permission. Settlement Class Members will h'(‘we a right to appear at
the Final Approval/Settlement Fairness Hearing to have:, their objections heard
by the Court regardless of whether they submitted a wé’itten objection, At no
time shall any of the Parties or their counsel seek éo solicit or otherwise
encourage Class Members to file or serve written ob‘jec‘!tions to the Settlex?nent
or appeal from the Order and Final Judgment. Class Members who Sllbl‘:nit a

written request for exclusion may not object to the Settlement. Class Members

may not object to the PAGA Settlement.
24
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M.

Funding and Allocation of the Gross Settlement Amount. Defendants are required to
pay the Gross Settlement Amount plus the employer’s share of payroll taxe.:; as
mandated by law within the time sbeciﬁed hereinabove on each! Funding Date.

L. Calculation of Individual Settlement Payments. IIndividua] Settlement
Payments shall be paid from the Net Settlement Amc{»unt and shall be paid
pursuant to the formula set forth herein. Using the C‘%lass Data, the Claims
Administrator shall add up the total number of Workweeks for all Class

1
Members. The respective Workweeks for each Class Member will be divided

by the total Workweeks for all Class Members, resultinig in the Payment Ratio
for each Class Member. Each Class Member’s Paymient Ratio will then be
multiplied by the Net Settlement Amount to calculate each Class Member’s
estimated Individual Settlement Payment. Each Individual Settlement
Payment will be reduced by any legally mandated empioyee tax withholdings
(e.g., employee payroll taxes, etc.). Individual Settlem'gnt Payments for Class
Members who submit valid and timely requests tl"or exclusion will be
redistributed to Settlement Class Members who do not S'lubmitva]id and timely
|

requests for exclusion on a pro rata basis based on their respective Payment
|

Ratios. : |

2. Calculation of Individual Payments to the PAGA Groﬁg Members. Using the

Class Data, the Claims Administrator shall add up the ftotal number of PAGA
Pay Periods for all PAGA Group Members during tlle PAGA Period. The
respective PAGA Pay Periods for each PAGA Group I\E/Iember will be divided
by the total PAGA Pay Periods for all PAGA Group|Members, resultiI;g in
the “PAGA Payment Ratio” for each PAGA Group Member. Each PAGA

Group Members’s PAGA Payment Ratio will then be multiplied by the PAGA

|
25
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Group Payment to calculate each PAGA Group Members’s estimated share of

the PAGA Group Payment. |

3. Allocation of Individual Settlement Payments. For ta?‘c purposes, Individual
|
Settlement Payments shall be allocated and treated as 20% wages (“Wage

Portion™) and 80% penalties and pre-judgment interest (‘Penalties and Interest

\
Portion™). The Wage Portion of the Individual Settlem‘ent Payments shall be.

|
reported on IRS Form W-2 and the Penalties and Intert‘%st Portion and Interest

Portion of the Individual Settlement Payments shall bej‘reported on IRS Form

1099 issued by the Settlement Agreement. j
J
4. Allocation of PAGA Group Payments. For tax purposes, PAGA Group

Payments shall be allocated and treated as 100% pjenalties and shall be

reported on IRS Form 1099.

5. No Credit Toward Benefit Plans. The Individual Settlement Payments,and

individual shares of the PAGA Payment made to Settlement Class Members

and/or PAGA Group Members under this Settlement Agreement, as well as
any other payments made pursuant to this Settlement ﬁ\greement, will not be
utilized to calculate any additional benefits under any ]‘beneﬁt plans to which
any Class Members may be eligible, inciuding, butjnot limited to profit-
sharing plans, bonus plans, 401(k) plans, stock purchas% plans, vacation plans,
sick leave plans, PTO plans, and any other benefit ﬁlan. Rather, it is the

Parties’ intention that this Settlement Agreement will not affect any rights,

I . : | . :
contributions, or amounts to which any Class Members may be entitled under

any benefit plans. '
6. All monies received by Settlement Class Members under the Settlement which
are attributable to wages shall constitute income to such Settlement Class

Members solely in the year in which such monies are actually received by the
26 |
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Settlement Class Members. It is the intent of the Parties that Individual

Settlement Payments and individual shares of the PAGA Payment provided for
in this Settlement agreement are the sole payments to be made by Defendants to
Settlement Class Members and/or PAGA Group Members in connection with
this Settlement Agreement, with the exception of Pllaintiﬁ's, and that the
Settlement Class Members and/or PAGA Group Members are not entitled to any

new or additional compensation or benefits as a result of having received the

Individual Settlement Payments and/or their shares of the PAGA Group.
|
|
7. Mailing. Proportionate Individual Settlement Payments and PAGA Group

Payment.

Payments shall be mailed by regular First-Class U.S. Mail to Settlement Class
Members’ and/or PAGA Group Members’ last known mailing address no later
than thirty (30) days after each Funding Date.

8. Expiration. Any checks issued to Settlement Class Members and PAGA
Group Members shall remain valid and negotiable for c;ne hundred and eighty
(180) days from the date of their issuance. If a Settlement Class Member
and/or PAGA Group Member does not cash his or her settlement check within
90 days, the Claims Administrator will send a letter to Esuch persons, advising
that the check will expire after the 180% day, and invitt!: that Settlement Class
Member and/or PAGA Group Member to request reissuance in the event the
check was destroyed, lost or misplaced. In the event an Individual Settlement
Payment and/or PAGA Group Members’ individuali share of the PAGA
Payment check has not been cashed within one hundred‘ and eighty (180) dlays,
all funds represented by such uncashed checks, plus any interest accrued

thereon, shall be paid to the Community Law Project, a Cy Pres, pursuant to

California Code of Civil Procedure section 384.
27 |
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9. Service Awards. In addition to the Individual Seitlement Payments as

Settlement Class Members and their individual shares of the PAGA Group

Payment, Plaintifts will apply to the Court for an a\?jrard of not more than
$15,000.00 as Service Awards for Plaintiffs Martin Mi‘ariscal, Daniel Garcia,
Rafael Rojas and Jose Hernandez, and for an awa%rd of not more than
$30,000.00 as the Service Award for Plaintiff Luis Vazquez. Defendants will
not oppose Service A?vards of not more than $ 15,000.0;0 for Plaintiffs Martin
Mariscal, Daniel Garcia, Rafael Rojas, and Jose Hen?andez, and a Service
Award of not more than $30,000.00 for Plaintitf Luis 1l\lazquc:z. The Claims
Administrator shall pay proportionate shares of the Service Awards, eithcler in
the amount stated herein if approved by the Court or some other amount as
approved by the Court, to Plaintiffs from the Gross éettlemcnt Amount no
later than thirty (30) days after each Funding Date., Any portion of the
requésted Service Award that is not awarded to the ClasLs Representatives shall
be part of the Net Settlement Amount and shall be diétributed to Settlement
Class Members as provided in this Agreement. The Claims Administrator
shall issue an IRS Form 1099 — MISC to Plaintiffs for their Service Awards.
Plaintiffs shall be solely and legally responsible to pay% any and all applicable
taxes on their Service Awards and shall hold hamle%s the Released Palrties
from any claim or liability for taxes, penalties, or interejst arising as a result of
the Service Awards. Approval of this Settlement shallj not be conditioned on

1
Court approval of the requested amount of the Service Awards. If the Court

1
reduces or does not approve the requested Service Awajrds, Plaintiffs shall not
. |
have the right to revoke the Settlement, and it will remain binding. !

10. Attorneys’ Fees and Attorneys’ Expenses. Defendant understands Class

Counsel will file a motion for or Attorneys’ Fees not to exceed 35% of the
28 |
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Gross Settlement Amount currently estimated to ibe $700,000.00 and
Attorneys’ Expenses not to exceed Thirty Thousand ‘Dollars ($30,000.00).
Any awarded Attorneys’ Fees and Attorneys’ Expenses shall be paid from the
Gross Settlement Amount. Any portion of the requgsted Attorneys’ Fees
and/or Attorneys’ Expenses that are not awarded to élass Counsel shall be
part of the Net Settlement Amount and shall be distribu:ted to Settlement Class
Members as provided in this Agreement. The Claims Administrator shall
allocate and pay a proportionate share of the Attorneys’ Fees and Attorneys’
Expenses to Class Counsel from the Gross Settlcmcntg Amount no later than
thirty (30) days after each Funding Date. Class Counisel shall be solely and
legally responsible to pay all applicable taxes on the pé.yment made pursuant
to this paragraph. The Claims Administrator shall issue an IRS Form 1099 —
MISC to Class Counsel for the payments made pursuant to this paragraph. In
the event that the Court reduces or does not approve the requested Attorneys’
Fees, Plaintiffs and Class Counsel shall not have tl;e right to revoke the

Settlement, or to appeal such order, and the Settlement will remain binding.

PAGA Payment. One Hundred Thousand Doilars ($100,000.00) shall be

allocated from the Gross Settlement Amount for settlement of claims for civil
penalties under the Private Attorneys General A!ct of 2004 (“PAGA
Payment™). The Claims Administrator shall pay a pr(;portionate share of the
LWDA Payment, comprised of seventy-five percent (75%) of the PAGA
Payment ($75,000.00), to the California Labor and Workforce Development
Agency no later than thirty (30) days after each Funding Date. The PAGA
Group Payment, comprised of twenty-five percent; (25%) of the PAGA
Payment ($25,000.00), will be distributed to the PAGA Group Members as

described in this Agreement, For purposes of distributing the PAGA Group
29
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12.

Payment, each PAGA Group Member shall receive thellr pro-rata share of the
PAGA Group Payment using the PAGA Payment Ratirl) as defined above.

Claims Administration Expenses. The Claims Adminigtrator shall be paid for
the costs of administration of the Settlement from the Gross Settlement

Amount. The estimate of the Claims Administration Expenses is $13,000.00.
1

The Claims Administrator shall be paid a proportionate share of the Claims

Administration Expenses no later than thirty (30) days after each Funding

Date.

|
Final Approval Motion. Class Counsel and Plaintiffs shall use Jbes‘c efforts to file with

the Court a Motion for Order Granting Final Approval and Entéring Judgment, within

twenty (20) days following the expiration of the Response Deadline, which motion

shall request final approval of the Settlement and a determination of the amounts

payable for the Service Awards, the Attorneys’ Fees and Attorneys’ Expenses, the

PAGA Payment, and the Claims Administration Expenses. |Plaintiffs will provide

Defendants with a draft of the Motion at least five business days prior to the filing of

the Motion to give Defendants an opportunity to propose changes or additions to the

Motion.

L.

Declaration by Claims Administrator. No later than seven (7) days after the
Response Deadline, the Claims Administrator shall slubmit a declaration in
support of Plaintiffs’ motion for final approval of this Settlement detailing the
number of Notice Packets mailed and re-mailed to Class Members, the
number of undeliverable Notice Packets, the numberI of timely requests for
exclusion, the full names of those Class Members who requested exclusmn
from the Settlement, the number of objections recei\lfed, the amount of the
average, highest, and lowest Individual Settlement Palyments, the amount of

the average, highest, and lowest PAGA Group Payments, the Claims
30 |
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N.

Administration Expenses, and any other information as the Parties mutually
agree or the Court orders the Claims Administrator to ;FJrovide.

2. Final Approval Order and Judgment. Class Counsel ghall present an Order
Granting Final Approval of Class Action Settlement to the Court for its
approval, and Judgment thereon, at the time Class Counsel files the Motion
for Final Approval.

Review of Motions for Preliminary and Final Approval. Class Counsel will provide
an opportunity for Counsel for Defendants to review the Motions for Preliminary and
Final Approval, including the Order Granting Final Appr:oval of Class Action
Settlement, and Judgment before filing with the Court, as stat:ed above. The Parties
and their counsel wifl cooperate with each other and use their bf:St efforts to affect the
Court’s approval of the Motions for Preliminary and Final Appfoval of the Settlement,
and entry of Judgment.

Cooperation. The Parties and their counsel will cooperate w!ith each other and use

their best efforts to implement the Settlement.

Interim Stay of Proceedings. The Parties agree to stay all probeedings in the Action,

except such proceedings necessary to implement and complete the Settlement, pending
the Final Approval/Settlement Fairmess Hearing to be conducted by the Court.
Amendment or Modification. This Agreement may be amend’ed or modified only by
a written instrument signed by counsel for all Parties or their successors-in-interest.

: . . . .
Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any attached Exhibit constitute the entire

Agreement among these Parties, and no oral or written representations, warranties or
inducements have been made to any Party concerning this Aéreement or its Exhibits
other than the representations, warranties and covenants contained and memorialized
in this Agreement and its Exhibit. |
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Authorization to Enter into Settlement Apgreement. Counsel for all Parties warrant and
represent they are express!y authorized by the Parties whom the)!/ represent to negotiate
this Agreement and to take all appropriate Action required or p?rmitted to be taken by
such Parties pursuant to this Agreement to effectuate its terms, ahd to execute any other
documents required to effectuate the terms of this Agreernent!. The persons signing
this Agreement on behalf of Defendants represents and warrants that he/she is
authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of Defendants. I;laintiffs represent and

warrant that they are authorized to sign this Agreement and that they have not assigned

any claim, or part of a claim, covered by this Settlement to a th‘ird-party.

No Public Comment: The Parties and their counsel agree that they will not issue any
press releases, initiate any contact with the press, respond to any press inquiry, or have
any communication with the press about the fact, amount or terms of the Settlement
Agreement. Class Counsel further agrees not to use the Settlement Agreement or any
of its terms for any marketing or promotional purposes. Further, Class Counsel will
not include, reference, or use the Seftlement Agreement ifor any marketing or
promotional purposes, either before or after the Motion for };reliminary Approval is
filed. Except a may be necessary to enforce the provisions: of this Agreement, or
otherwise prohibited by law, including California Code of (;ivil Procedure section
1001-1002, and Cal. Gov. Code §§ 12900 ef seq., Plaintiffs and Class Counsel shall
not directly or ihdirectly disclose the facts, Gross Settlement Amount, or terms of this
individual, class and representative settlement to the public|or to anyone. Nothing
herein will restrict Class Counsel from including publicly available information
|
regarding this settlement in future judicial submissions reglarding Class Counsel’s
qualifications and experience for adequacy as attorneys ﬁor a putative class or

representative group to justify an award of attorney fees. Nc:)thing shall prevent the
|
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communication by Class Counsel or any parties to respond'to specific questions
received from the Settlement Class Members regarding the temils of the Agreement.
Binding on Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be b;inding upon, and inure
to the benefit of, the successors or assigns of the Parties, as prc‘viously defined.

California Law Governs. All terms of this Agreement and the Exhibit and any disputes

shall be governed by and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be. executed in one or n;ore counterparts. All
executed counterparts and each of them shall be deemed to be one and the same
instrument provided that counsel for the Parties to this Agrcleement shail exchange
among themselves copies or originals of the signed counterparts.

This Settlement Is Fair, Adequate and Reasonable. The Parl:icsj believe this Settlement
is a fair, adequate, and reasonable settlement of this Action and have arrived at this
Settlement after extensive arms-length negotiations, taking iqto account all relevant
factors, present and potential.

Continuing Jurisdiction of the Court. The Parties agree thalt the Court shall retain
continuing jurisdiction over this case under CCP Sectior; 664.6 to ensure the
continuing implementation of the provisions of this settlement and that the time within
which to bring this action to trial under CCP Section 583.310 shall be extended from
the date of signing this agreement by all parties until the entry of the final approval

|
order and judgement or if not entered the date this agreement shall no longer be of any

force or effect |

Invalidity of Any Provision. Before declaring any provision of this Agreement invalid,
1 :

the Court shall first attempt to construe the provisions valid to the fullest extent

possible consistent with applicable precedents so as to deﬂr;lc all provisions of this

Agreement valid and enforceable. '
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AA. Waiver of Certain Appeals. The Parties agree to waive appeals and to stipulate to class

BB.

CC.

ITIS SO AGREED FORM AND CONTENT, BY PLAINTIFFS:

N o acep, 04/01/2024

' 'certificérion for purposes of this settlement only.

No Admissions by the Parties. Plaintiffs have claimed and co?tlnuc to cla1m that the
Released Class Claims have merit and give rise to liability on Thc part of Dcfendants
Defendants claim that the Released Class Claims have no mem’t and do not give Ijijs'e to
liability. This Agre'g‘t:ncnt is a compromise of disputed claims. Nothing contained in
this Agreement and no documents teferred to and no acﬁon- taken to carry oﬁt' this
| Agrcernent may be construed-or used as an admission by or- agmnst the Defendants or|
Plaintiffs or Class Counsel‘as to the merits or lack thereof of theE claims asserted Other
than as may be specifically set forth herein, each Party shall be responsible for and |
shall bear its/their own attorney’s fees and costs. |

Default; Notice; Cure; Acceleration; Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence
. :

“with respect to all provisions of this Agreement. If Defendants fail to timely make any

p. ayments due hereunder, they shall be in default of their‘obli!gations. Plainti‘ffs;shall

thereafter give notice of default and Defendants must cure said default within ten (10)

calendar davs thereof In the event of an uncured default, all ungmd amounts shall be

- .due and payable with interest at the legal rate from the date of default, '7 B ' '

]
E

Martin Mariscal lﬂpf 1,024 11:09 PDT}

DATED: 04/ 02/2024

Martin Mariscal

Daniel Garcia [Apr 2, 2024 06:50 PDT]

DATED:

Daniel Garcia

Refas! Rojas (Aprs 2, 2024 1032 PDT)

DATED:

04/02/2024 Qaleokfost i SR

Rafael Rojas . l
03./ 20 / 2024 Joseluis Hernbndel

Jose Hernandez
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DATED: |
Luis Vazquez !

IS SO AGREED, FORM AND CONTENT, BY DEFENDANT:

DATED:

JANCO INDUSTRIES, INC.

Terry Alexander; Andrew Alexendar

Printed Name ;

CEO/CFQ; Vice President |
Title :

DecuSigned by:
DATED: March 26, 2024 | 12:23 pM poT ' Tumy lepander
Terry Alexander ~CEO/CFO

DocuSigned by:

DATED: March 26, 2024 | 10:14 AM EDT Andiw Hezeandor
Andrew NTERAEHE- Vice President

IT IS SO AGREED AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL:

DATED: JCLLAW FIRM, AP.C. |

By:

J
Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Settlement Class
Members |

DATED: ZAKAY LAW GROUP, APLC

By: |

|
Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Settlement Class
Members
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DATED: 04 /01 /2024

Luis Vazquez

1S SO AGREED, FORM AND CONTENT, BY DEFENDANT: |

DATED:

DATED:

JANCO INDUSTRIES, INC.

Printed Name !

Title I

DATED:

Terry Alexander

Andrew Alexander !

IT IS SO AGREED AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL:

DATED: March 28, 2024

DATED: March 28, 2024

JCL LAW FIRM, A.P.C. .
|

By: D e e

ey

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Settlement Class
Members :

ZAKAY LAW GROUP, APLC

A

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Settlement Class
Members
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DATED:

a0 Jaoad

DATED: 04/01/2024

DATED:

4-2-2024

GAIN ES&%&PLC
By: /

Attorneys for Péntiff and the Settlement Class
Members |

i
|
|
|

DREW LEWIS, PC

By; }@ WAVEYS .

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Settlement Class
Members

GORDON REES SCULLY MANSUKHANT, LLP

By:___Jieafu Sops |
Roger M. Mansukhani, Esq. |
Bimali Walgampaya, Esq.

Heather T. Daiza, Esq.

Attorney for Defendants
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EXHIBIT A




NOTICE OF PENDENCY OF CLASS ACTION SETTLEMENT
AND FINAL HEARING DATE

(Maviscal, et al. v. Janco Industries, Inc., San Joaquin County Superior Court Case No STR-CV-UOE-
2022-7290)

YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS MAY BE AFFECTED WHETHER YOU ACT OR DO NOT ACT. PLEASE

READ THIS NOTICE CAREFULLY. !
MMARY OF YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS AND OPTIONS IN THIS SETTLEMENT
Do Nothing and To receive a cash payment from the Settlement, you do noet have to do
Receive a Payment anything.

Your estimated Individual Settlement Payment is: $<< L >>. See
the explanation below.

" | After final approval by the Court, the payment will be mailed to you at

| the same address as this notice. If your address has changed, please
notify the Claims Administrator as explained below. In exchange for the
settlement payment, you will release claims against the Defendants as
detailed below.

Exclude Yourself If you wish to exclude yourself from the Settlement, you must send a
written request for exclusion to the Claims Administrator as provided
{ below. If you request exclusion, you will receive no moneiv from the
Settlement. Even if you exclude yourself, you will still be a PAGA
Group Member subject to the PAGA settlement. '

Instructions are set forth below.

Object You may object by writing to the Court about why you believe the
settlement should not be approved or by appearing in court:

{ Directions are provided below.

A proposed class action settlement (the “Settlement”) of this lawsuit pending in the Superior Court for the State
of California, County of San Joaquin (the “Court”) has been reached between Plaintiff Martin Mariscal, Plaintiff
Daniel Garcia, Plaintiff Jose Hernandez, Plaintiff Rafael Rojas, and Plaintiff Luis Vazquez (“Plaintiffs”) and
Defendant Jance Industries, Inc., Defendant Terry Alexander, and Defendant Andrew Alexander (“Defendants”).
The Court has granted preliminary approval of the Settlement. You may be entitled to receive money from this
Settlement.

You have received this Class Notice because you have been identified as a member of the Class, which is

defined as:
|

All non-exempt employees who are or previously were employed by Janco and performed work
in California during the period between August 19, 2018 to January 12, 2024 (“Class Period™).



This Class Notice explains the lawsuit, the Settlement, and your legal rights. It is important that you read this
Notice carefully as your rights may be affected by the Settlement. [

hat:is this class action Iawsnit abo

In this lawsuit, which was consolidated on March 30, 2023, Plaintiffs claim that Defendm!)ts (1) failed to pay all
wages due; (2) failed to provide legally compliant meal and rest periods, or compensation in lieu thereof; (3)
failed to reimburse for all business-related expenses; (4) failed to issue accurately 1temlzec'1 wage statements; (5)
failed to timely pay all wages due at the separation of employment; (6) violated Cahfomla s Unfair Competition
laws; and (7) that these violations entitle Plaintiffs to recovery civil penalties on behalf of the State of Calitornia
under the Private Attorneys General Act (“PAGA”). Currently, this matter resides with the Honorable George
Abdallah Jr., Department 10 of the Stockton Courthouse.

Defendants deny any liability or wrongdoing of any kind associated with the claims alleged in the Action, disputes
any wages, damages and penalties claimed by the Class Representatives are owed, and further contends that, for
any purpose other than settlement, the Action is not appropriate for class or representative action treatment.
Defendants contend, among other things, that at all times it complied with the California Labor Code, the
California Business & Professions Code, and the Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders.

On October 11, 2023, the Parties participated in an all-day mediation with Steve Rottman, an experienced
mediator of wage and hour class actions. The mediation concluded with a settlement, wlluch was subsequently
memorialized in the form of a Memorandum of Understanding. The Court granted preliminary approval of the
Settlement on MONTH XX, 202X. At that time, the Court also preliminarily approved the Plaintiffs to serve as
the Class Representatives, and the law firms of JCL Law Firm, APC, Zakay Law Group, APC, Gaines & Gaines,

APLC, and Drew Lewis, PC to serve as Class Counsel. i

|:3:: What are the terms of the Settlement? . . ]
Gross Settlement Amount. Defendant has agreed to pay an amount of Two Million Dollar%s ($2,000,000.00) (the
“Gross Settlement Amount™) to fund the settlement. The Gross Settlement Amount includes the payment of all
Individual Settlement Payments to Settlement Class Members, PAGA Group Members, Attorneys’ Fees,
Attorneys’ Expenses, Claims Administration Expenses, the PAGA Payment, and the SFrvice Awards to the
Plaintiffs.

After the Judgment becomes Final, Defendants will pay the Gross Settlement Amount by depositing the money
with the Claims Administrator in three installments, commencing 14 days after the Final Judgment, and completed
a year after Final Judgment. “Final” means the date the Judgment is no longer subject to appeal, or if an appeal
is filed, the date the appeal process is completed, and the Judgment is affirmed.

Amounts to be Paid from the Gross Settlement Amount. The Settlement provides for certain payments to be
made from the Gross Settlement Amount, which will be subject to final Court approval, and which will be
deducted from the Gross Settlement Amount before settlement payments are made to Class/Members, as follows:

e Claims Administration Expenses. The amount paid to the Claims Administrator fron'a the Gross Settlement
Amount for administering the Settlement currently estimated not to exceed Thirteen Thousand Dollars
($13,000.00) for expenses, including expenses of sending this Notice, processing opt outs, and distributing
settlement payments.

» Attorneys’ Fees and Attorneys’ Expenses. An award of Attorneys’ Fees that the (,ourt authorizes to be
paid to Class Counsel for the services they rendered to Plaintiff and the Settlement Class in the Action,




not to exceed one-third of the Gross Settlement Amount, currently estimated to be Seven Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($700,000.00), and an award Attorneys’ Expenses that the Court authorizes to be paid
to Class Counsel for the expenses they have incurred up to Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) for all
expenses incurred as documented in Class Counsel's billing records, both subject to Court approval. Class
Counsel have been prosecuting the Action on behalf of Plaintiffs and the Class on a contingency fee basis
(that is, without being paid any money to date) and have been paying all litigation costs and expenses.

o Service Awards. Service Awards in the amount of Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) to Plaintiffs
Mariscal, Garcia, Rojas, and Hernandez and in the amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) to
Plaintiff Vazquez, or such lesser amount as may be approved by the Court, to compensate therm for
services on behalf of the Class in initiating and prosecuting the Action, and for the risks they undertook.

¢ PAGA Payment. A payment of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) to be allocated from the
Gross Settlement Amount, relating to Plaintiffs’ claim under the Private Attorneys General Act
(“PAGA”), with 25% of the payment ($25,000.00) going to the PAGA Group Members (“PAGA Group
Payment™) and 75% of the payment ($75,000.00) going to the State of California’s Labor and Workforce
Development Agency (“LWDA”) (‘LWDA Payment™)

¢ Calculation of Payments to Settlement Class Members. Afier all the above payments of the court-approved
Attorneys’ Fees, Attorneys’ Expenses, the Service Awards, the PAGA Payment, and the Claims
Administration Expenses are deducted from the Gross Settlement Amount, the remaining portion, called
the “Net Settlement Amount,” shall be distributed to class members who do mot request exclusion
(“Settlement Class Members™). The Individual Settlement Payment for each Settlement Class Member
will be caleulated by dividing the Net Settlement Amount by the total number of workweeks for all
Settlement Class Memibers that occurred during the Class Period and multiplying the result by each
individual Settlement Class Member’s workweeks that occurred during the Class Period. A “workweek”
is defined as any seven (7) consecutive days beginning on Sunday and ending on Saturday, in which a
Class Member is employed and received any form of compensation from Defendants.

e Calculation of PAGA Group Payments to PAGA Group Members. The PAGA Group Payment shall be
distributed to the PAGA Group Members irrespective of whether they exclude themselves or opt-out. The
PAGA Group Payment will be divided by the total number of pay periods worked by all PAGA Group
Members during the PAGA Period, and then taking that number and multiplying it by the number of pay
periods worked by each respective PAGA Group Member during the PAGA Period. “PAGA Group
Members” means all non-exempt employees who are or previously were employed by Defendant and
performed work in California during the PAGA Period. The PAGA Period means the period between
July 13, 2021, to January 12, 2024. ‘

If the Settlement is approved by the Court, you will automatically be mailed a check for your Individual
Settlement Payment to the same address as this Class Notice. You do not have to do anything to receive a
payment. If your address has changed, you must contact the Claims Administrator to inform them of your correct
address to ensure you recetve your payment.

Tax Matters. Twenty percent (20%) of each Individual Settlement Payment is allocated to wages. Taxes are
withheld from this amount, and each Settlement Class Member will be issued an Internal Revenue Service Form
W-2 for such payment. EBighty percent (80%) of each Individual Settlement Payment is allocated to interest,
penalties and other non-wage payments, and no taxes will be withheld, and each Settlement Class Member will
be issued an Internal Revenue Service Form 1099 for such payment. In addition, no taxes will be withheld from
the PAGA Payment paid to PAGA Group Members, and each PAGA Group Member will be issued an Internal
Revenue Service Form 1099 for such payment. Neither Class Counsel nor Defendants’ counsel intend anything
contained in this Settlement to constitute advice regarding taxes or taxability. You may,wish to consult a tax
advisor concerning the tax consequences of the payments received under the Settlement.
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No Credit Toward Benefit Plans. The Individual Settlement Payments and PAGA Gr(“)up Payments made to
Settlement Class Members and/or PAGA Group Members under this Settlement Agreement, as well as any other
payments made pursuant to this Settlement Agreement, will not be utilized to calculate !any additional benefits
under any benefit plans to which any Class Members may be eligible, including, but not limited to profit-sharing
plans, bonus plans, 401 (k) plans, stock purchase plans, vacation plans, sick leave plans, PTO plans, and any other
benefit plan. Rather, it is the Parties’ intention that this Settlement Agreement will not affect any rights,
contributions, or amounts to which any Class Members may be entitled under any benefit plans.

1

Conditions of Settlement. This Settlement is conditioned upon the Court entering an order granting final approval
of the Settlement and entering judgment.

[47What Do 1 Releasc Under the Setflement? .~ =~ = oo o ]

idr b,

Released Class Claims. As of the Effective Date, subject to Defendants’ full payment of the Gross Settlement
Amount, and in exchange for the consideration set forth in this Agreement, Plaintiffs and the Settlement Class
Members release the named Defendants, together with their officers, directors, employees, members, member
managers, owners, affiliates and agents (the “Released Parties™) from the all class claims alleged, or reasonably
could have been alleged based on the facts alleged in the Operative Complaint in the Action which occurred
during the Class Period, and expressly excluding all other claims, including claims for vested benefits, wrongful
termination, unemployment insurance, disability, social security, workers’ compensation, and class claims outside
of the Class Period (the “Released Class Claims™). .

Released PAGA Claims. As of Effective Date, subject to Defendants’ full payment of the Gross Settlement
Amount, and in exchange for the consideration set forth in this Agreement, the Plaintiffs, the LWDA and the
State of California release the Released Parties from all PAGA claims alleged, or reasonably could have been
alleged, in the Operative Complaint and Plaintiffs’ PAGA notices to the LWDA which occurred during the PAGA
Period, and expressly excluding all other claims, including claims for vested benefits, wrongful termination,
unemployment insurance, disability, social security, workers’ compensation, and PAGA claims outside of the
PAGA Period (the “PAGA Released Claims™). As a result of this release, the PAGA Class Members shall be
precluded from bringing claims against Defendants for the Released PAGA Claims.

This means that, if you do not timely and formally exclude yourself from the settlement, you cannot sue, continue
to sue, or be part of any other lawsuit against Defendants about the legal issues resolved by this Settlement. It
also means that all of the Court’s orders in this Action will apply to you and legally bind you.

Defendants’ records reflect that you have << >> Workweeks worked during the Class Period (August
19, 2018 to January 12, 2024),

['5. How much will my payment be?"" *

Based on this information, your estimated Individual Settlement Payment is << >,

Defendants’ records reflect that you have << >> pay periods worked during the PAGA Period (July
13, 2021 to January 12, 2024).

Based on this information, your estimated PAGA Group Payment is << >>,

If you wish to challenge the information set forth above, then you must submit a written, signed dispute
challenging the information along with supporting documents, to the Claims Administrator at the address

!



provided in this Notice no later than [forty-five (45) days after the Notice or fifteen (15) days
after the re-mailed Notice]. :

B2

{ 6. 'How.can I gét.a payment? When will Tibe paid? ~ --

To get money from the settlement, you do not have to do anything. A check for your settlement payment will
be mailed automatically to the same address as this Notice. If your address is incorrect or has changed, you must
notify the Claims Administrator. The Claims Administrator is: Apex Class Action Settlement Administration.

The Court will hold a hearing on to decide whether to finally approve the Settlement. If
the Court approves the Settlement and there are no objections or appeals, payments will be mailed within a few
months after this hearing. If there are objections or appeals, resolving them can take time, perhaps more than a
year, Please be patient, After entry of the Judgment, the Claims Administrator will provide notice of the final
judgment to the Class Members by posting a copy of the Judgment on the Claims Administrator’s website at

https://www.apexclassaction.comy.

1f the Court approves the settlement, and if you do not opt out, your Individual Settlement Payment and PAGA
Group Payment will be received in three payments, which are expected to take place on ,

[approximately 45 days after Final Approval Hearing], [approximately 225
days after Final Approval Hearing], and [approximately 405 days after Final Approval
Hearing].

[ 7 Whiatif T don’t wanfto be a partof the Settlement? -+ 5 .~ fEioin oot an

If you do not wish to participate in the Settlement, you may exclude yourself from the Settlement or “opt out.” If
you opt out, you will receive NO money from'the Settlement, and you will not be bound by its terms, except
as provided as follows: Irrespective of whether you exclude yourself from the Settlement or “opt out,” you will
be bound by the PAGA Release, you will be deemed to have released the Released PAGA Claims, and you will
receive a share of the PAGA Group Payment.

To opt out, you must submit to the Claims Administrator, by First Class Mail, a written, signed and dated request
for exclusion postmarked no later than . The address for the Claims Administrator is Apex
Class Action LLC, 18 Technology Drive, Ste. 164, Irvine, CA 92618. The request for exclusion must state in
substance that the Class Member has read the Class Notice and that he or she wishes to be excluded from the
settlement of the class action lawsuit entitled Mariscal, et al. v. Janco Industries, Inc., currently pending in
Superior Court of San Joaquin, Case No. STR-CV-UOE-2022-7290. The request for exclusion must contain your
narmne, address, signature and the last four digits of your Social Security Number for verification purposes. The
request for exclusion must be signed by you. No other person may opt out for a member of the Class.

Written requests for exclusion that are postmarked after , or are incomplete or unsigned will be
rejected, and those Class Members will remain bound by the Settlement and the release described above.

(87 Howdo T tell the Cowrt.that X would e 1o challenge the Setlement? .7 5 0 1 7101 ]

Any Class Member who has not opted out and believes that the Settlement should not be finally approved by the
Court for any reason, may object to the proposed Settlement. Objections may be in writing and state the Class
Member’s name, current address, telephone number, and describe why you believe the Settlement is unfair and
whether you intend to appear at the final approval hearing. All written objections or other correspondence must
also state the name and number of the case, which is Mariscal, et al. v. Janco Industries, Inc., San Joaquin
County Superior Court Case No. STR-CV-UOE-2022-7290. You may also object without submitting a written

objection by appearing at the final approval hearing scheduled as described in Section 9 below.



|

To object to the Settlement, you cannot opt cut. If the Court approves the Settlement, you will be bound by the
terms of the Settlement in the same way as Class Members who do not object. Any Class Member who does not

object in the manner provided in this Class Notice shall have waived any objection to the Settlement, whether by
appeal or otherwise. ' ‘

Written objections must be delivered or mailed to the Claims Administrator no later than
' . The address for the Claims Administrator is 18 Technology Drive, Suite 164, Trvine, CA

92618.

The addresses for the Parties’ counsel are as follows:

Class Counsel: Class Counsel: Counsel for Defendant:
Jean-Claude Lapuyade, Esq. Shani O. Zakay, Esq. Roger M. Masukhani, Esq.
JCL Law Firm, APC Zakay Law Group, APLC Bimali Walgampaya, Esq.
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 3600 5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 3600 Heather T. Daiza, Esq.
San Diego, CA 92121 San Diego, CA 92121 Gordon Rees Scully Mansukham, LLP
Tel.: (619) 599-8292 Tel: (619) 599-8292 101 W. Broadway, Suite 2000,
Fax: (619) 599-2891 Fax: (619) 599-8291 San Diego, CA 92101
E-Mail: ilapuyade@jcl-lawfirm.com E-Mail: shani@zakaylaw.com Tel.: (619) 696-6700

Fax: (619) 696-7124
Class Counsel: Class Counsel:
Daniel Gaines, Esq. Drew Lewis, Esq.
Gaines & Gaines, APLC Drew Lewis, PC
4550 E. Thousand Oaks Blvd,, 2999 Douglas Blvd., Suite 180
Suite 100 Roseville, CA 95661
Westlake Village, CA 91362 Tel: (833) 600-7400
Tel.: (818) 703-8985 E-Mail: drew@drewlewis.law

Fax: (818) 703-8984
E-Mail; daniel@gaineslawfirm.com

The Court will hold a Final Approval Hearing at 00:00 AM/PM on , at the San Joaquin County
Superior Court, Department 10A, located at 180 E. Weber Avenue, Stockton, CA 95202 before Judge George
Abdallah Jr. At this hearing, the Court will consider whether the Settlement is fair, reasonable, and adequate.
The purpose of this hearing is for the Court to determine whether to grant final approval to the Settlement. If
there are objections, the Court will consider them. The Court will listen to people who have made a timely written
request to speak at the hearing or who appear at the hearing to object. This hearing may be rescheduled by the
Court without further notice to you. You are not required to attend the Final Approval Hearing, although any
Class Member is welcome to attend the hearing.

When and where will'the Coitrt decidé whether to'approve the Settlement?




(0. How do I got moreimformmation about the Settlement?s = [ . ¢ ]
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You may call the Claims Administrator at 1-800-355-0700 or write to Mariscal, et al. v. Janco Industries, Inc.,

currently pending in San Joaquin County Superior Court Case No. STR-CV-UQE-2022-7290, Claims
Administrator, ¢c/o Apex Class Action Settlement Administration.

This notice summarizes the proposed settlement. More details are in the Settlement Agreement. You may receive a
copy of the Settlement Agreement, the Final Judgment or other Settlement documents by writing to JCL Law firm,
APC, 5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 3600, San Diego, CA 92121 or by visiting the website listed in this notice.

PLEASE DO NOT CALL THE COURT ABOUT THIS NOTICE.

IMPORTANT:

e  You must inform the Claims Administrator of any change of address to ensure receipt of your settlement
payment.

e Settlement checks will be null and void 180 days after issuance if not deposited or cashed. In such event, the
Claims Administrator shall pay all funds from such uncashed checks to the Comrmunity Law Project, a Cy Pres,
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section 384. If your check is lost or misplaced, you should contact
the Claims Administrator immediately to request a replacement.
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JCL LAW FIRM, APC

Jean-Claude Lapuyade (State Bar #248676)
Monnett De La Torre (State Bar #272884)
Andrea A. Amaya Silva (State Bar #348080)
Kendall Garald (State Bar #351773)

3440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 3600

San Diego, CA 92121

Telephone: (619) 599-8292

Facsimile: (619) 599-8291
jlapuyade@jcl-lawfirm.com

mdelatorre(@jcl-lawfirm.com

aamava@djcl-lawfirm.com
kearald@jcl-lawfirm.com

ZAKAY LAW GROUP, APLC
Shani O. Zakay (State Bar #277924)
5440 Morehouse Dr., Ste 3600

San Diego, CA 92121

Telephone: (619)255-9047
Facsimile: (858) 404-9203
shaniiizakavlaw.com
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Attorneys for PLAINTIFFS MARTIN MARISCAL, DANIEL GARCIA, and RAFAEL ROJAS

(Additional Counsel on Next Page)

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN

MARTIN MARISCAL, DANIEL GARCIA,
RAFAEL ROJAS, JOSE HERNANDEZ, AND
LUIS VAZQUEZ individuals, on behalf of
themselves and on behalf of all persons

similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
V.

JANCO INDUSTRIES, INC., a California

corporation; TERRY ALEXANDER,
individual, ANDREW ALEXANDER,
individual; and DOES 1-50, Inclusive,

Defendants.

an
an

Case No: STK-CV-UOE-2022-7290
Related with: STK-CV-UQE-2022-9998;
STK-CV-UQE-20(22-8450; and
STK-CV-UQE-2022-8790

FIRST AMENDED CLASS AND PAGA
ACTION COMPLAINT FOR:

1) UNFAIR COMPETITION IN VIOLATION
OF CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE §17200 et
seq,

2) FAILURE TO PAY MINIMUM WAGES
IN VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE §§
221, 1194, 1197 & 1197.1;

3) FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES
IN VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE §§
510 et seq;

4) FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED
MEAL PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF

FIRST AMENDED CLASS AND PAGA ACTION COMPLAI!‘TT




L I - N ¥ T O 7S N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

GAINES & GAINES

Daniel Gaines, Esq.

Alex Katofsky, Esq.

4550 East Thousand Oaks Blvd, Suite 100
Westlake Village, CA 91362

T: (866) 400-4450
daniel(@gaineslawfirm.com
alex{@gaineslawfirm.com

Attorneys for PLAINTIFF JOSE HERNANDEZ

DREW LEWIS, PC

Drew Lewis, Esq.

2999 Douglas Blvd, Suite 180
Roseville, CA 95661

T: (833) 600-7400
drew@drewlewis.law

Attorneys for PLAINTIFF LUIS VAZQUEZ

2

CAL. LAB. CODE §§!226.7 & 512 AND
THE APPLICABLE IWC WAGE ORDER;

5) FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED
REST PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF
CAL. LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND
THE APPLICABLE IWC WAGE ORDER;

6) FAILURE TO PROVIDE ACCURATE
ITEMIZED STATEMENTS IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE § 226;

) FAILURE TO REIMBURSE
EMPLOYEES FOR REQUIRED
EXPENSES IN VIOLATION OF
CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE §2802;

8) FAILURE TO PROVIDE WAGES WHEN
DUE IN VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB.
CODE §§ 201, 202 AND 203.

9) FAILURE TO TIMELY PAY WAGES
DURING EMPLOYMENT CAL. LAB.
CODE §§ 204 AND 210.

10) VIOLATION OF THE PRIVATE

ATTORNEYS GENERAL ACT [LABOR
CODE §§ 2698 et seg.]

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

|

I .
FIRST AMENDED CLASS AND PAGA ACTION COMPLAINW‘T :
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PLAINTIFFS MARTIN MARISCAL, DANIEL GARCIA, RAFAEL ROJAS, JOSE

I
HERNANDEZ, AND LUIS VAZQUEZ (“PLAINTIFFS™), individuals, on behalf of themselves
and all other similarly situated current and former employees, alleges on information and belief,

except for their own acts andknowledge which are based on personal knowledge, the following:

THE PARTIES

1. Defendant JANCO INDUSTRIES, INC. (“DEFENDANT JANCO
INDUSTRIES”) is a California corporation that at all relevant times mentioned herein conducted
and continues to conduct substantial and regular business in the state of California.

2. Defendant TERRY ALEXANDER (“DEFENDANT TERRY ALEXANDER”) is
an individual that at all relevant times mentioned herein conducted and continues to conduct
substantial and regular business in the state of California.

3. Defendant ANDREW  ALEXANDER  (“DEFENDANT  ANDREW
ALEXANDER™) is an individual that at all relevant times mentioned herein conducted and
continues to conduct substantial and regular business in the state of California.

4, Defendant Janco Industries, Inc., and Defendant Terry Alexander, and Defendant
Andrew Alexander were the joint employers of PLAINTIFF as evidenced by the documents
issued to PLAINTIFF and by the company PLAINTIFF performed work for respectively and are
therefore jointly responsible as employers for the conduct alleged herein as “DEFENDANTS”
and/or “DEFENDANT.”

5. DEFENDANT provides production machining services in the State of California,
including in the county of San Joaquin, where PLAINTIFFS worked.

6. PLAINTIFF Martin Mariscal (“PLAINTIFF Mariscal”) was employed by
DEFENDANT in California from February of 2022 to May of 2022 as a non-exempt employee,
paid on an hourly basis, and entitled to the legally required meal and rest periods and payment of
minimum and overtime wages due for all time worked. |

7. PLAINTIFF Daniel Garcia (“PLAINTIFF Garcia”) was employed by
DEFENDANT in California from February of 2022 to May of 2022 as a non-exempt employee,

|
3 :
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paid on an hourly basis, and entitled to the legally required meal and rest peﬁpds and payment of
minimum and overtime wages due for all time worked. l

8. PLAINTIFF Rafael Rojas (“PLAINTIFF Rojas”) was employed by
DEFENDANT in California from February of 2022 to May of 2022 as a non-exempt employee,
paid on an hourly basis, and entitled to the legally required meal and rest periods and payment of
minimum and overtime wages due for all time worked.

9. PLAINTIFF Jose Hernandez (“PLAINTIFF Hernandez”) was employed by
DEFENDANT in California from July of 2020 to February of 2022 as a non-exempt employee,
paid on an hourly basis, and entitled to the legally required meal and rest periods and payment of
minimum and overtime wages due for all time worked.

10. PLAINTIFF Luis Vazquez (“PLAINTIFF Vazquez”) was employed by
DEFENDANT in California from July 2015 to 2016 and 2017 to September 2022 as a non-exempt
employee, paid on an hourly basis, and entitled to the legally required meal and rest periods and
payment of minimum and overtime wages due for all time worked.

[1.  On orabout March 30, 2023, this Court ordered consolidated the following matters
by the PLAINTIFFS Daniel Garcia, Rafael Rojas, Jose Hernandez, and Luis Vasquez: STK-CV-
UOE-2022-7290, STK-CV-UOE-2022-9998, STK-CV-UQE-2022-8450, and STK-CV-UOE-
2022-8790. The intent of this First Amended Complaint is to consolidate all of the allegations
from all of the complaints into this First Amended Complaint.

12.  The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, subsidiary,
partnership, associate or otherwise of defendants DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, are presently
unknown to PLAINTIFFS who therefore sues these Defendants by such fictitious names
pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 474. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amn;nd this Complaint
to allege the true names and capacities of Does [ through 50, inclusive, when they are
ascertained. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe, and {aased upon that information and belief
alleges, that the Defendant named in this Complaint, including DOES 1 thr(:)ugh 50, incIusive,l

(hereinafter collectively “DEFENDANTS” and/or “DEFENDANT™) are responsibie in some

4 i
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manner for one or more of the events and happenings that proximately cau?ed the injuries and
damages hereinafter alleged.

13.  The agents, servants, and/or employees of the Defendants and each of them acting
on behalf of the DEFENDANT acted within the course and scope of his, her or its authority as
the agent, servant and/or employee of the Defendants, and personally participated in the conduct
alleged herein on behalf of the Defendants with respect to the conduct alleged herein.
Consequently, the acts of each Defendant are légally attributable to the other Defendants and all
Defendants are jointly and severally liable to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS, for the loss sustained as a proximate result of the conduct of the
Defendants’ agents, servants and/or employees.

14. DEFENDANT was PLAINTIFFS’ employer or persons acting on behalf of
PLAINTIFFS’ employer, within the meaning of California Labor Code § 558, who violated or
caused to be violated, a section of Part 2, Chapter 1 of the California Labor Code or any provision
regulating hours and days of work In any order of the Industrial Welfare Commission and, as
such, are subject to civil penalties for each underpaid employee, as set forth in Labor Code § 558,
at all relevant times.

15. DEFENDANT was PLAINTIFFS’ employers or persons acting on behalf of
PLAINTIFF’s employer either individually or as an officer, agent, or employee of another person,
within the meaning of California Labor Code § 1197.1, who paid or caused to be paid to any
employee a wage less than the minimum fixed by California state law, and as such, are subject to
civil penalties for each underpaid employee

16. PLAINTIFFS were employed by DEF ENDANT in California from February of
2022 and was at all times classified by DEFENDANT as a non-exempt employee, paid on an
hourly basis, and entitled to the legally required meal and rest periods and payment of minimum
and overtime wages due for all time worked.

17.  PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselvés and a California
class, defined as all persons who are or previously were employed by DEFENDANT in California

and classified as non-exempt employees (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS”™) at any time during the

5 1
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period beginning four (4) years prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on the date as
determined by the Court (the “CLASS PERIOD”). The amount in controver%.y for the aggregate
claim of the CALIFORNIA CLASS Members is under five million dollars (§5,000,000.00).

18. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselves and a
CALIFORNIA CLASS in order to fully compensate the CALIFORNIA CLASS for their losses
incurred during the CLASS PERIOD caused by DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice
which failed to lawfully compensate these employees. DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and
practice alleged herein was an unlawful, unfair and deceptive business practice whereby
DEFENDANT retained and continues to retain wages due PLAINTIFFS and the other members
of the CALTFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS seek an injunction enjoining such conduct by DEFENDANT in the future, relief for the
named PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS who have been
economically injured by DEFENDANT"s past and current unlawful conduct, and all other
appropriate legal and equitable relief.

19. DEFENDANT’s uniform policies and practices alleged herein were unlawful,
unfair and deceptive business practices whereby DEFENDANT retained and continues to retain
wages due PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

20. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS seek an
injunction enjoining such conduct by DEFENDANT in the future, relief for the named
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS who have been economically
injured by DEFENDANT’s past and current unlawful conduct, and all other appropriate egal and
equitable relief.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

21, This has jurisdiction over this Action pursuant to California Code of Civil
Procedure, Section 410.10 and California Business & Professions Code, §ection 17203. This
action is brought as a Class Action on behalf of PLAINTIFF and similarly situated employees of
DEFENDANT pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

i .
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22.  Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure,
Sections 395 and 395.5, because PLAINTIFFS worked in this County for IDEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT (i) curreptly maintains and at all relevant times maintained offices and facilities
in this County and/or conduct substantial business in this County, and (ii) committed the wrongful
conduct herein alleged in this County against members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

THE CONDUCT

23. In violation of the applicable sections of the California Labor Code and the
requirements of the Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage Order, including but not
limited to, Wage Order 16, DEFENDANTS as a matter of company policy, practice and
procedure, intentionally, knowingly and systematically failed to provide legally compliant meal
and rest periods, failed to accurately compensate PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALJFORNIA CLASS for missed meal and rest periods, failed to pay PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all time worked, failed to pay all wages due during
employment, failed compensate PLAINTIFFS for off-the-clock work, unlawfully deducted
amounts from wages, failed to compensate PLAINTIFFS and other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS meal rest premiums at the regular rate, failed to reimburse PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for business expenses, and failed to issue to
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with accurate itemized wage
statements showing, among other things, all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay
periods and the corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. DEFENDANTS’
uniform policies and practices are intended to purposefully avoid the accurate and full payment
for all time worked as required by California law which allows DEFENDANT to illegally profit
and gain an unfair advantage over competitors who comply with the law. To the extent equitable
tolling operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CLASS
PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly. '

A. Meal Period Violations i

24.  Pursuant to the Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders, DEFENDANT was
required to pay PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all their time worked,

7 |
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meaning the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an elmployer, inclu,din:g

all the time the employee is suffered or permitted to work. From time-to-timei during the CLASS
PERIOD, DEFENDANT required PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASé Members to work
without paying them for all the time they were under DEFENDANT’s control. Specifically, as ;a
result of PLAINTIFFS® demanding work 'requirements and DEFENDANT’s umicrstafﬁng,
DEFENDANT required PLAINTIFFS to work while clocked out during what was supposed to
be PLAINTIFFS’ off-duty meal break. PLAINTIFFS were from time to time interrupted by work
assignments while clocked out for what should have been PLAINTIFFS’® off-duty meal break.
Indeed, there were many days where PLAlNTlFFS did not even receive a partial lunch. More
specifically, from time to time, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were
required by DEFENDANT to work through their meal breaks in order to meet DEFENDANT’’s
preséribed labor hours to perform all the tasks required of them by DEFENDANT. PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required to perform work-related tasks.
Additionally, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required to perform
as much work as possible and as quickly as possible in order to meet DEFENDANT’s strict
performance and production requirements. As a result, the PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members forfeitg:d minimum wage and overtime wages by regularly
working without their time being accurately recorded and without compensation at the applicable
minimum wage and overtime rates. DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice not to pay
PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all time worked is evidenced b.y
DEFENDANTS’ business records.

25.  From time-to-time during the CLASS PERIOD, as a result of their rigorous work
requirements and DEFENDANT’s inadequate staffing practices, PLAINTIFFS and othe:r
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were from time to time unable to take thirty (30) minute off-
duty meal breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for their meal periods.; PLAINTIFFS anld
other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required from time to time tio perform work a:s
ordered by DEFENDANT for more than five (5) hours during some shifts ;without receiving a
meal break. Further, DEFENDANT from time to time failed to provide PLAINTIFES and

g

FIRST AMENDED CLASS AND PAGA ACTION COMPLAINT




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

27
28

CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with a second off-duty meal period for some'workdays in which
these employees were required by DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of !work from time to
time. 'The nature of the work performed by PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members does not qualify for limited and narrowly construed “on-duty” meal period exception.
When they were provided with meal periods, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members were, from time to time, required to remain on duty and on call. ' PLAINTIFFS and
other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members therefore forfeited meal breaks without additional

compensation and in accordance with DEFENDANT’s strict corporate policy and practice.

B. Rest Period Violations

26. From time-to-time during the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS members were also required from time to time to work in excess of four
(4) hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest periods as a result of their rigorous work
requirements and DEFENDANTS’ inadequate staffing. More specifically, from time to time,
PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required by DEFENDANT to
work through their rest breaks in order to meet DEFENDANT’s prescribed labor hours to perform
all the tasks required of them by DEFENDANT. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members were required to perform work-related tasks. Additionally, PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required to perform as much work as possible and as
quickly as possible in order to meet DEFENDANT’s strict performance and production
requirements. Further, for the same reasons these employees were denied thFir first rest periods
of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of at least two (2) to four (4) hours from time
to time, a first and second rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shif’tg worked of between
six (6) and eight (8) hours from time to time, and a first, second and third rest period of at lea;st
ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of ten (10) hours or more from time 'to time. When théy
were provided with rest breaks, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were
from time to time, required to remain on duty and/or on call. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also not provided with one-hour wages in lieu thereof. As

a result of their rigorous work schedules and DEFENDANTS” inadequate staffing, PLAINTIFF
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and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were from time to time denie%d their proper rest

periods by DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT’s managers.

C. Unlawful Rounding Violations

27.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT did not have in place
an immutable timekeeping system to accurately record and pay PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for the actual time these employees worked each day, including
overtime hours. Specifically, DEFENDANTS had in place an unlawful rbunding policy and
practice that resulted in PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members being
undercompensated for all of their time worked. As a result, DEFENDANT was able to and did in
fact unlawfully, and unilaterally round the time recorded in DEFENDANT’s timekeeping system
for PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS in order to avoid paying these
employees for all their time worked, including the applicable overtime compensation for overtime
worked. As aresult, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Mermbers, from time to time,
forfeited compensation for their time worked by working without their time being accurately
recorded and without compensation at the applicable overtime rates.

28. Further, the mutability of DEFENDANT’s timekeeping system and unlawful
rounding policy and practice resulted in PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members’
time being inaccurately recorded. As a result, from time to time, DEFENDANT’s unlawful
rounding policy and practice caused PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members to
perform work as ordered by DEFENDANT for more than five (5) hours during a shift without
receiving an off-duty meal break. Additionally, DEFENDANT’s unlawful rounding policy and
practice caused PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members to perform work as ordered
by DEFENDANT for more than ten (10) hours during a shift without receiving a second off-duty

meal break.

D. Regular Rate Violation — Overtime, Double Time, Meal and Rest Period Premiums, and

Sick Pay
29.  From time-to-time during the CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANTS failed and

continue to fail to accurately calculate and pay PLAINTIFF and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS
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members for their overtime and double time hours worked, meal and rest pe:riod premiums, and
sick pay. Asaresult, PLAINTIFF and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS members forfeited wages
due them for working overtime without compensation at the correct overtime and double time
rates, meal and rest period premiums, and sick pay rates. DEFENDANTS’ uniform policy and
practice to not pay the CALIFORNIA CLASS members the correct rate for all overtime and
double time worked, meal and rest period premiums, and sick pay in accordance with applicable
law is evidenced by DEFENDANTS’ business records.

30.  State law provides that employees must be paid overtime at one-and-one-half times
their “regular rate of pay.” PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS members were
compensated at an hourly rate plus incentive pay that was tied to specific elements of an
employee’s performance.

31.  The second component of PLAINTIFFS’ and other CALIFORNIA CLASS
members’ compensation was DEFENDANT’s non-discretionary incentive program that paid
PLAINTIFFS and other CLASS MEMBERS incentive wages based on their performance for
DEFENDANT. The non-discretionary bonus program provided all employees paid on an hourly
basis with bonus compensation when the employees met the various performance goals set by
DEFENDANT,

32, However, from-time-to-time, when calculating the regular rate of pay, in those pay
periods where PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS members worked overtime, double
time, paid meal and rest period premium payments, and/or paid sick pa‘y, and earned non-
discretionary bonus, DEFENDANT failed to accurately include the non-discretionary bonus
compensation as part of the employees’ “regular rate of pay” and/or calculated all hours worked
rather than just all non-overtime hours worked. Management and supervisors described the
incentive/bonus program to potential and new employees as part of the compensation package.
As a matter of law, the incentive compensation received by PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS members must be included in the “regular rate of pa)Jz.” The failure to do
so has resulted in a systematic underpayment of overtime and double time <compensation, meal

and rest period premiums, and sick pay to PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS
I
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members by DEFENDANT. Specifically, California Labor Code Section 246 mandates that paid
sick time for non-employecs shall be calculated in the same manner as the regular rate of pay for
the workweek in which the non-exempt employee uses paid sick time, whether or not the
employee actually works overtime in that workweek. DEFENDANT’s conduct, as articulated
herein, by failing to include the incentive compensation as part of the “regular rate of pay” for
purposes of sick pay compensation was in violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 246 the underpayment of
which is recoverable under Cal. Labor Code Sections 201, 202, 203 and/or 204.

33. In violation of the applicable sections of the California Labor Code and the
requirements of the Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage Order, DEFENDANT as a
matter of company policy, practice and procedure, intentionally and knowingly failed to
compensate PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS at the correct
rate of pay for all overtime and double time worked, meal and rest period premiums, and sick pay.
This uniform policy and practice of DEFENDANT is intended to purposefully avoid the payment
of the correct overtime and double time compensation, meal and rest period premiums, and sick
pay as required by California law which allowed DEFENDANT to illegally profit and gain an
unfair advantage over competitors who complied with the law. To the extent equitable tolling
operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA CLASS members against DEFENDANT, the
CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

E. Unrc¢imbursed Business Expenses

34. DEFENDANT as a matter -of corporate policy, practice, and procedure,
intentionally, knowingly, and systematically failed to reimburse and indemnify the PLAINTIFFS
and the CALIFORNIA CLASS for required business expenses incurred by the PLAINTIFES and
other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members in direct consequence of discharging their duties on behalf
of DEFENDANT. Under California Labor Code Section 2802, employers are required to
indemnify employees for all expenses incurred in the course and scope of their employment. Cal.
Lab. Code § 2802 expressly states that “an employer shall indemnify his or her employee for all
necessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in direct consequence of the discharge

of his or her duties, or of his or her obedience to the directions of the employer, even though
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unlawful, unless the employee, at the time of obeying the directions, believed them to be

unlawful.” i
35. In the course of their employment, DEFENDANT required PLAINTIFFS and
other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members to use their personal cell phones, vehicles, and tools as a
result of and in furtherance of their job duties as employees for DEFENDANT. But for the use of
their own personal cell phones, vehicles, and tools, PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members could not complete their essential job duties, including but not limited to, sending and
receiving work-related communications from DEFENDANT, driving to work sites., driving
between work sites, and transporting equipment.. However, DEFENDANT unlawfully failed to
reimburse PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNTA CLASS Members for their use of their personal
cell phones, vehicles, and tools. As a result, in the course of their employment with
DEFENDANT, the PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members incurred
unreimbursed business expenses, but were not limited to, costs related to the use of their personal

cellular phones, vehicles, and tools, all on behalf of and for the benefit of DEFENDANT.

F. Wage Statement Violations

36. California Labor Code Section 226 requires an employer to furnish its employees
an accurate itemized statement in writing showing (1) gross wages earned, (2) total hours worked,
(3) the number of piece-rate units earned and any applicable piece-rate, (4) all deductions, (5) net
wages earned, (6) the inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is paid, (7) the name
of the employee and only the last four digits of the employee’s social security number or an
employee identification number other than a social security number, (8) the name and address of
the legal entity that is the employer and, (9) all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay
period and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the employee.

37.  From time to Fime during the CLASS PERIOD, when PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Mcmi)ers missed meal and rest breaks, or were paid inaccurate missed
meal and rest period premiums, or were not paid for all hours worked, DEFENDANT also failed
to provide PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with complete and accurate

wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the total hours worked and all
|

|
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applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the correspondipg amount of time
worked at each hourly rate, and correct rates of pay for penalty payments or mlissed meal and rest
periods. |
38. In addition to the violations described above, DEFENDANTS, from time to time,
failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with wage statements
that comply with Cal. Lab. Code § 226. |
39. As a result, DEFENDANT issued PLAINTIFFS and the otl;er members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements that violate Cal. Lab. Code § 226. Further,
DEFENDANT’s violations are knowing and intentional, were not isolated or due to an

unintentional payroll error due to clerical or inadvertent mistake.

G. Off-the-Clock Work Resulting in Minimum Wage and Overtime Violations

40. Pursuant to the Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders, DEFENDANT was
required to pay PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all their time worked,
meaning the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an employer, including all
the time the employee is suffered or permitted to work. From time to time, DEFENDANT required
PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members to work without paying them for all the time |
they were under DEFENDANT’s control. Specifically, PLAINTIFES performed work before and
after the beginning of their shift, spending time under the DEFENDANTS’ control for which they
were not compensated. More specifically, from time to time, PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required by DEFENDANT to perform work before and after
the beginning of their shifts in order to meet DEFENDANT’s prescribed labor hours to i)erfonn all
the tasks required of them by DEFENDANT. Additionally, since DEFENDANT required
PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNTA CLASS Members to perform as much work as possible and
as quickly as possible in order to meet DEFENDANT’s strict performance and production
requirements, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were, from time to time,
required to work off-the-clock before and after their shifts in order to meet DEFENDANT’s strict
requirements.

I
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4].  As aresult, the PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLA%S Members forfeited
minimum wage and overtime compensation by regularly working without their time bei:ng
accurately recorded and without compensation at the applicable minimum wage and overtime rates.
DEFENDANT failed to pay PLAINTIFFS and other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS
necessary wages for attending for performing work at DEFENDANT’s direction, request and
benefit, while off-the clock. DEFENDANTS" uniform policy and practice not to pay PLAINTIFF
and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all time worked is evidenced by DEFENDANTS’
business records. |

42. DEFENDANT directed and directly benefited from the uncompensated off-the-
clock work performed by PLAINTIFF and the other members of the CALTFORNIA CLASS.

43. DEFENDANT controlled the work schedules, duties, protocols, applications,
assignments, and employment conditions of PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS.

44. DEFENDANTS were able to track the amount of time PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS spent working; however, DEFENDANT failed to
document, track, or pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS all
wages earned and owed for all the work they performed, including pre-shift, bost shift and during
meal period off-the-clock work.

45. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS were non-
exempt employees, subject to the requirements of the California Labor Code.

46. DEFENDANTS’ policies and practices deprived PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS of all minimum, regular, overtime, and double time wages
owed for the off-the-clock work activities. Because PLAINTIFFS and the other members of tlhe
CALIFORNIA CLASS typically worked over 40 hours in a workweek, and more than eight (8)
hours per day, DEFENDANTs policies and practices also deprived them of overtime pay.

47. DEFENDANT knew or should have known that PLAIN’I.lLFFS and the ott;er

members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS off-the-clock work was compensable under the law.
111
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48.  As a result, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS
forfeited wages due them for all hours worked at DEFENDANT’s direction,jcontrol and beneﬁ:t
for the time spent working while off-the-clock. DEFENDANT’s uniform pollicy and practice to
not pay PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS wages for all hours worked
in accordance with applicable law is evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records.

49.  Specifically, as to PLAINTIFFS, PLAINTIFFS were from time to time unable to
take off duty meal and rest breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for their rest and meal
periods. PLAINTIFFS were required to perform work as ordered by DEFENDANTS for more
than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal break. Further,
DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFFS with a second off-duty meal period each workday
in which they were required by DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of work. Whe|n
DEFENDANTS provided PLAINTIFFS with a rest break, they required PLAINTIFES to remain
on-duty and on-call, for the rest break. DEFENDANTS’ policy caused PLAINTIFFS to remain
on-call and on-duty during what was supposed to be their off-duty meal periods. PLAINTIFFS
therefore forfeited meal and rest breaks without additional compensation and in accordance with
DEFENDANTS’ strict corporate policy and practice. Moreover, DEFENDANTS also provided
PLAINTIFFS with a paystub thal failed to comply with Cal. Lab. Code § 226. Further,
DEFENDANTS failed to reimburse PLAINTIFFS for the use of their personal cell phone,
persbnal vehicle, and personal expenses for the purchase of tools as a result'of and in furtherance
of their job duties for DEFENDANTS. To date, DEFENDANTS have not fully paid PLAIN TII*‘F:S
the minimum, overtime and double time compensation still owed to them or any penalty wages
owed to them under Cal. Lab. Code § 203. The amount in controversies for PLAINTIFFS
individually do not exceed the sum or value of $75,000.

H. CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

50. PLAINTIFF brings the First through Eighth Causes of Action as a class action
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure § 382 on behalf of all persons who are or

previously were employed by DEFENDANT in California and classified as non-exempt
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|
employees (“CALIFORNIA CLASS”) during the period beginning four years prior to the ﬁlinlg
of the Complaint and ending on a date determined by the Court (“CLASS PERIOD”).

51. PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members hiave uniformly been
deprived of wages and penalties from unpaid wages earned and due, includin:g but not limited to
unpaid minimum wages, unpaid overtime compensation, unpaid meal and res;t period prexnium%.,
and illegal meal and rest period policies. Defendant further failed to rein;burse for businesﬁ
expenses, failed to compensate for off-the-clock work, failed to provide accurate itemized wage
statements, and failed to maintain required records, and interest, statutory and civil penalties,
attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses. '

52. The members of the class are so numerous that joinder of all class members is
impractical. 1

53. Common questions of law and fact regarding DEFENDANTS’ conduct, includiﬂg
but not limited to, the off-the-clock work, unpaid mean and rest period pfemiums, failing fo
provide legally compliant meal and rest periods, failed to reimburse for business expenses, failure
to provide accurate itemized wage statements accurate, and failure to ensure they are paid at least
minimum wage and overtime, exist as to all members of the class and predominate over any
questions affecting solely any individual members of the class. Among the questions of law anld
fact common to the class are: ' . I

i.  Whether DEFENDANTS maintained legally compliant meallperiod policies anid
practices; ‘ '
ii. Whether DEFENDANTS muaintained legally compliant rest :period policies an:d
practices; | ‘

iti. Whether DEFENDANT failed to pay PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA

CLASS Members accurate premium payments for missed meal and rest periods;

iv.  Whether DEFENDANT failed to pay PLAINTIFFS and ithe CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members accurate overtime wages; i :
v.  Whether DEFENDANT failed to pay PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA

CLASS Members at least minimum wage for all hours worked;

17
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vi.  Whether DEFENDANT failed to compensate PLAIlTITIFFS and the

CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for required business expensfes;
vil.  Whether DEFENDANT issued legally compliant wage statemlents;

viii.  Whether DEFENDANT committed an act of unfair competition by systematically
failing to record and pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS for all time worked;

ix.  Whether DEFENDANIT committed an act of unfair competition by systematically
failing to record all meal and rest breaks missed by PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, even though DEF ENDANT?enjoyed the benefit
of this work, required employees to perform this work and pgn‘nits or suffers to
permit this work;

x.  Whether DEFENDANT committed an act of unfair competition in violation of the
UCL, by failing to provide the PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with the legally required meal and rest periods.

54, PLAINTIFFS are members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and suffered damages

as a result of DEFENDANTS’ conduct and actions alleged herein.

55. PLAINTIFFS’ claims are typical of the claims of the class, and PLAINTIFFS have

the same interests as the other members of the class.

56. PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS Members. |

57. PLAINTIFFS retained able class counsel with extensive experience in class action

litigation.

58. Further, PLAINTIFES’ interests are coincident with, and not antagonistic to, the

interests of the other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members.

59. There is a strong community of interest among PLAINTIFFS and the members of

the CALIFORNIA CLASS to, inter alia, ensure that the combined assets of DEFENDANT are
sufficient to adequately compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for the injuries

sustained.
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60. The questions of law and fact common to the C;*XLIFORNIAi CLASS Members
predominate over any questions affecting only individual members, including legal and factua.l
issues relating to liability and damages. ,

61. A class action is superior to other available methods for th% fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy because joinder of all class members in ixnpﬁctical. Moreover,
since the damages suffered by individual members of the class may be relatively small, the
expense and burden of individual litigation makes it practically impossible for the members of the
class individually to redress the wrongs done to them. Without class certification and
determination of declaratory, injunctive, statutory and other legal questions within the class
format, prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the CALTFOi{NTA CLASS will
create the risk of: |

i. Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individu:al members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS which would establish incompatible standards of conduct
for the parties opposing the CALIFORNIA CLASS; and/or, | .

ii. Adjudication with respect to individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS
which would as a practical matter be dispositive of the interests of the other
members not party to the adjudication or substantially impair or impeded their
ability to protect their interests.

62. Class treatment provides manageable jud{cial treatment calculated to bring an
efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour related claims arising out of

the conduct of DEFENDANT.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Unlawful Business Practices
(Cal. Bus. And Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.)
(Alleged By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against all Defendants)
63. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CL!ASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this

Complaint.
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64. DEFENDANT is a “person” as that term is defined under Cal. Bus. And Prof.
Code § 17021. | |

65.  California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, ef seq. (the “UCL”) defines
unfair competition as any unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business act or practice. Section 17203
authorizes injunctive, declaratory, and/or other equitable relief with respect to unfair competition

as follows: '

Any person who engages, has engaged, or proposes to engage in unfair competition may
be enjoined in any court of competent jurisdiction. The court may make such orders or
judgments, including the appointment of a receiver, as may be necessary to prevent the
use or employment by any person of any practice which constitutes unfair competition, as
defined in this chapter, or as may be necessary to restore to any person in interest any
money or property, real or personal, which may have been acquired by means of such
unfair competition. (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203).

66. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT has engaged and continues to
engage in a business practice which violates California law, including but 1:10t limited to, the
applicable Wage Order(s), the California Code of Regulations and the California Labor Code
including Sections 201, 202, 203, 204, 226, 226.7, 246, 510, 512, 558, 1194, 1197, 1197.1, 1198,
2802, for which this Court should issue declaratory and other equitable relief pursuant to Cal.
Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203 as may be necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct held to
constitute unfair competition, including restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

67. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were ulnlawﬁil and unfair
in that these practices violated public policy, were immoral, unethical, oppressive unscrupulous
or substantially injurious to employees, and were without valid justification or utility for which
this Court should issue equitable and injunctive relief pursuant to Section 17203 of the California
Business & Professions Code, including restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

68. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were deceptive and
fraudulent in that DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice failed to provide the legally
mandated meal and rest periods and the required amount of compensation foir missed meal and
rest periods and, due to a systematic business practice that cannot be justiﬁeid, pursuant to thtai

applicable Cal. Lab. Code, and Industrial Welfare Commission requirements i:n violation of Cal.
!
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Bus. Code §§ 17200, et seq., and for which this Court should issue injunctive ar'lld equitable relief,
pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203, including restitution of wages wrbngfully withheld.

69. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices wére also unlawful,
unfair and deceptive in that DEFENDANT;S employment practices caused PLJ\INTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS to be underpaid during their employment with
DEFENDANT. ‘

70. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were also unfair and
deceptive in that DEFENDANT’s uniform policies, practices and procedures failed to provide
legally required meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFF and the CALIFORN IA. CLASS members
as required by Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 and 512.

71. Therefore, PLAINTIFFS demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each'
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which an off-duty meal
period was not timely provided for each five (5) hours of work, and/or one (1) hour of pay for
each workday in which a second off-duty meal period was not timely provided for each ten (10)
hours of work.

72.  PLAINTIFFS further demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which a rest period was
not timely provided as required by law.

73. By and through the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein,
DEFENDANT has obtained valuable property, money and services from PLAINTIFF and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, including earned wages for all time worked, and
has deprived them of valuable rights and benefits guaranteed by law and contract, all to the
detriment of these employees and to the benefit of DEFENDANT so as to allow DEFENDANT

to unfairly compete against competitors who comply with the law. |
|

74.  All the acts described herein as violationé of, among other thi'lngs, the Industrial
Welfare Commission Wage Orders, the California Code of Regulations, and tth California Labor

Code, were unlawful and in violation of public policy, were immoral, unethical, oppressive, and
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unscrupulous, were deceptive, and thereby constitute unlawful, unfair and deceptive business

practices in violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq. |

75. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA C;LASS are entitled
to, and do, seek such relief as may be necessary to restore to them the money and property which
DEFENDANT has acquired, or of which PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS have been deprived, by means of the above described unlawful and unfair
business practices, including earned but unpaid wages for all time worked.

76.  PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are further
entitled to, and do, seek a declaration that the described business practices aref;z unlawful, unfair,
and deceptive, and that injunctive relief should be issued restraining DEFENDANT from
engaging in any unlawful and unfair business practices in the future.

77. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have no plain,
speedy and/or adequate remedy at law that will end the unlawful and unfair business practices of
DEFENDANT. Further, the practices herein alleged presently continue to occur unabated. As a
result of the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein, PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer irreparable legal
and economic harm unless DEFENDANT is restrained [rom continuing to engage in these

unlawful and unfair business practices.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Minimum Wages
(Cal. Lab. Code §§ 221, 1194, 1197, 1197.1 Wage Order 16)
(Alleged By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against all Defendants)
78. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA C[:ASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior p;aragraphs of this,
Complaint. |

79.  PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLlASS bring a claim
for DEFENDANT’S willful and intentional violations of the California Laijor Code and the
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Industrial Welfare Commission requirements for DEFENDANT’S failure to aiccuratcly calculate
and pay minimum wages to PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS Melmbers.

80.  Pursuantto Cal. Lab. Code § 204, other applicable laws and regu‘}lations, and public
policy, an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked.

81. Cal. Lab. Code § 1197 provides the minimum wage for employees fixed by the
commission is the minimum wage to be paid to employees, and the payment of*a lesser wage than
the minimum so fixed is unlawful.

82.  Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 cstablishes an employee’s right to recover unpaid wages,
including minimum wage compensation and interest thereon, together with the costs of suit.

83.  Defendants improperly deducted the cost of renting a truck and gas from Plaintiffs’
and CALIFORNIA CLASS members’ wages in violation of §§221 and 1194. '

84.  Labor Code §221 states that it is “unlawful for any employer to collect ore receive
from an employee any part of wages theretofore paid by said employer to said employee.”
Defendants’ practice of taking. And deducting wages from Plaintiff and other CALIFORNIA
CLASS members’ violates Labor Code §8221, 1194 and TWC Wage Order 16-2001, section 7.

85. Labor Code§§1194, 1197, 1197.1 and Industrial Welfare Commission (“TWC”)
Wage Order 16 require employers to pay an amount equal to or greater than the minimum wage
for each hour worked.

86. DEFENDANT maintained a uniform wage practice of paying PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS without regard to the correct amount of time
they worked. As set forth herein, DEFENDANT’S uniform policy and practice was to unlawfutly
and intentionally deny timely payment of wages due to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of
the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

87. DEFENDANT maintained a uniform wage practice of failing to pay all wages due
as a result of unlawful deductions to the CALIFORNIA CLASS. As|set forth herein,
DEFENDANTS’ uniform policy and practice was to unlawfully and intentionally deduct wages'
due to PLAINTIFFS and other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. ‘
Iy
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88. DEFENDANT’S uniform pattern of unlawful wage and hour preilctices manifested,
without limitation, applicable to the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a wholff:, as a result of
implementing a uniform policy and lirsictice that denied accurate compensati:on ar_ld resulted in
unlawful deductions to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS in
regards to minimum wage pay.

89.  In committing these violations of the California Labor Codle, DEFENDANT
inaccurately calculated the amount of time worked and/or improperly deducted certain costs from
Plaintiffs’ and CALIFORNIA CLASS members’ wages and consequently underpaid the actual
time worked and wages earned by PLAINTIFF and other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.
DEFENDANT acted in an illegal attempt to avoid the payment of all earned wages, and other
benefits in violation of the California Labor Code, the Industrial Welfare Commission
requirements and other applicable laws and regulations.

90.  As a direct result of DEFENDANT’S unlawful wage practices as alleged herein,
PLAINTIFF and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS did not receive the correct
minimum wage compensation for their time worked for DEFENDANT.

91.  During the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS were paid less for time worked than they were entitled to, constituting a
failure to pay all earned wages.

92. By virtue of DEFENDANT’S unlawful failure to accurately pay all earned
compensation to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for the true
time they worked, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have
suffered and will continue to suffer an economic injury in amounts which are presently unknown
to them, and which will be ascertained according to proof at trial.

93,  DEFENDANT knew or should have known that PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are under-compensated for th%air time worked.
DEFENDANT systematically elected, either through intentional malféasancc oI gBIOsS
nonfeasance, to not pay employees for their labor as a matter of uniform corpore‘lte policy, practice

and procedure, and DEFENDANT perpetrated this systematic scheme b)Ef refusing to pay
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PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS the correct minimum wages
for their time worked. |

94.  In performing the acts and practices herein alleged in violation of California labor
laws, and refusing to compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all time worked
and provide them with the requisite compensation, DEFENDANT acted and continues to act
intentionally, oppressively, and maliciously toward PLAINTIFES and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with a conscious and utter disregard for their ]e{'gal rights, or the
consequences to them, and with the despicable intent of depriving them of their property and legal
rights, and otherwise causing them injury in order to increase company profits at the expense of
these employees.

95,  PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS theretore
request recovery of all unpaid wages, according to proof, interest, statutory costs, as well as the
assessment of any statutory penalties against DEFENDANT, in a sum as provided by the
California Labor Code and/or other applicable statutes. To the extent minimum wage
compensation is determined to be owed to the CALIFORNIA CLASS Members who have
terminated their employment, DEFENDANT’S conduct also violates Labor Code §§ 201 and/or
202, and therefore these individuals are also be entitled to waiting time penalties under Cal. Lab.
Code § 203, which penalties are sought herein on behalf of these CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members. DEFENDANT’S conduct as alleged herein was willful, intentional and not in good
faith. Further, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members are ehtitled to seek and
recover statutory costs. |

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Overtime Compensation
(Cal. Lab. Code §§ 510, 1194, 1198 and Wage Order 16)
(Alleged By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against a]li Defendants)
96.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior ;;aragraphs of this

|
Complaint.
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97. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS bring a claim
for DEFENDANT’s willful and intentional violations of the California Labor Code and the
Industrial Welfare Commission requirements for DEFENDANT’s failure to pay these employees
for all overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hoiurs in a workday,
and/or twelve (12) hours in a workday, and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek.

98.  Pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 204, other applicable laws and regulations, and
public policy, an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked.

99. Cal. Lab. Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not be
employed more than eight (8) hours per workday and more than forty (40) hours per workweek
unless they receive additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts specified by
law. !

100. Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 establishes an employee’s right to Tecover unpaid wages,
including minimum wage and overtime compensation and interest thereon, together with the costs
of suit. Cal. Lab. Code § 1198 further states that the employment of an employee for longer hours
than those fixed by the Industrial Welfare Commission is unlawful.,

101. During the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA;CLASS Members
were required by DEFENDANT to work for DEFENDANT and were not paid for all the time
they worked, including overtime work.

102. DEFENDANT’s uniform pattern of unlawful wage and hour practices manifested,
without limitation, applicable to the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a whole, as a result of
implementing a uniform policy and practice that failed to accurately record overtime worked by
PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members and denied accurate compensation to
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for overtime worked,
including, the overtime work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workcliay, and/or twelve,
(12) hours in a workday, and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek. 1
103. In committing these violations of the California Labor Codle, DEFENDANT

inaccurately recorded overtime worked and consequently underpaid the overtime worked by

PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members. DEFENDANT El.Cth in an illegal
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attempt to avoid the payment of all earmed wages, and other benefits in violation of the California
Labor Code, the Industrial Welfare Commission requirements and other aplplicable laws and
regulations. | ‘

104.  As a direct result of DEFENDANT’s unlawful wage practices as alleged herein,
the PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS did not receive full
compensation for overtime worked.

105. Cal. Lab. Code § 515 sets out various categories of employees who are exempt
from the overtime requirements of the law. None of these exemptions are, applicable to the
PLAINTIFF and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. Further, IPLA]NT]FFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS were not subject to a valid coillective bargaining
agreement that would preclude the causes of action contained herein this Complaint. Rather,
PLAINTIFFS bring this Action on behalf of themselves and the CALIFORNIA CLASS based on
DEFENDANT’s violations of non- negotiable, non-waivable rights provided by the State of
California.

106. During the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS have been paid less for overtime worked that they are entitled to,
constituting a failure to pay all earned wages. .

107. DEFENDANT failed to accurately pay the PLAINTIFFS and the other members
of the CALIFORNIA CLASS overtime wages for the time they worked which was in excess of
the maximum hours permissible by law as required by Cal. Lab, Code §§ 510, 1194 & 1198, even
though PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS were required to
work, and did in fact work, overtime as to which DEFENDANT failed to accurately record and
pay as evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records and witnessed by employees.

108. By virtue of DEFENDANT’S unlawful failure to accurately pay all earned
compensation to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNII;A CLASS for all
overtime worked by these employees, PLAINTIEF and the other members of t:he CALIFORNIA.
CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer an economic injury in afnounts which are

presently unknown to them, and which will be ascertained according to proof at trial.
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109.  DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS were under compensated for all overtitne worked.
DEFENDANT systematically elected, either through intentional malfe:asance or gross
nonfeasance, to not pay employees for their labor as a matter of uniform company policy, practice
and procedure, and DEFENDANT perpetrated this systematic scheme by refusing to pay
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for overtime worked.

110.  In performing the acts and practices herein alleged in violation of California labor
laws, and refusing to compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime
worked and provide them with the requisite overtime compensation, DEFENDANT acted and
continues to act intentionally, oppressively, and maliciously toward PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with a conscious and utter disregard folr their legal rights,
or the consequences to them, and with the despicable intent of depriving them of their property
and legal rights, and otherwise causing them injury in order to increase company profits at the
expense of these employees.

111.  PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS therefore
request recovery of all unpaid wages, including overtime wages, accordfng to proof, interest,
statutory costs, as well as the assessment of any statutory penalties against DEFENDANT, in a
sum as provided by the California Labor Code and/or other applicable statutes. To the extent
minimum and/or overtime compensation is determined to be owed to the CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members who have terminated l!leir employment, DEFENDANT’s conduct allso violates Labor
Code §§ 201 and/or 202, and therefore these employees would also be entitltlad to waiting time
penalties under Cal. Lab. Code § 203, which penalties are sought herein on behalf of these
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members. DEFENDANT’s conduct as alleged herein was willful,
intentional, and not in good faith. Further, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS

1
Members are entitled to seek and recover statutory costs. i
i
[}
|

111 j
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide Required Meal Periods

(Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512 and Wage Order 16)
(Alleged By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against all Defendants)

112, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this
Complaint. A

113. Wage order 16 and Labor Code section 512 provide that all non-exempt employees
are entitled to a 30-minute, uninterrupted meal break for every 5-hour shift worked by the
employee and a second meal period for shifts lasting over then (10) hours.

114. An employer’s failure to provide an opportunity to take a meal break entitles the
employee to an hour of pay for each day an employer fails to provide an opportunity to take a
meal break.

115. At all times herein relevant, PLAINTIFF and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members
were non-exempt employees entitled to meal breaks.

116. During the CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT failed to provide all the legally
required off-duty meal breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members as
required by the applicable Wage Order and Labor Code. The nature of the work performed by
PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS MEMBERS did not prevent these employees from
being relieved of all of their duties for the legally required off-duty meal pcri:ads. As a result of
their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were
often not fully relieved of duty by DEFENDANT for their meal periods. Additionally,
DEFENDANT’s failure to provide PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with
legally required meal breaks prior to their fifth (5th) hour of work is evidenced by
DEFENDANT’s business records. Further, DEFENDANT failed to provide :PLAINTIFF S and
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with a second off-duty meal period in some workdays in which
these employees were required by DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of \:vork. As a result,
PLAINTIFFS and other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS forfeited méal breaks without
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additional compensation and in accordance with DEFENDANT’s strict corporate policy and

practice.

117. DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7? and the applicable
IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIAE CLASS Members
who were not provided a meal period, in accordance with the applicable IWage Order, one
additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a
meal period was not provided.

118. As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according to proof at trial,
and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of suit.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION '

Failure To Provide Required Rest Periods
(Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512 and Wage Order 16}
(Alleged By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against all Defendants)

119. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior ;;aragraphs of this
Complaint.

120. Wage Order 16 and Labor Code section 226.7 provides that all non-exempt
employees are entitled to at least a 10-minute rest break for each work period' of more than four
(4) hours, or major fraction thereof. |

121.  An employer’s failure to provide an opportunity to take a rest break entitles the
employee an hour of pay for each day an employer fails to provide an opportunity to take a rest
break.

122. At all times herein relevant, PLAINTIFF and CALIFORNIA CLASS Membersl
were non-exempt employees entitled to rest breaks i

123. From time to time, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLA;SS Members were

required to work in excess of four (4) hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest periods.

Further, these employees were denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10) minutes for some
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shifts worked of at least two (2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest period of at least ten (10)

minutes for some shifts worked of between six (6) and eight (8) hours, and a first, second and
third rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of ten (1‘0) hours or more.
PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also not provided with one-hour
wages in lieu thereof. As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFF and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members weré periodically denied their proper rest periods by
DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT’s managers. As a result, DEFENDANT’s failure to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with all the legallyirequired paid rest
periods is evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records. '

124. DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the applicable
IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIAECLASS Members
who were not provided a rest period, in accordance with the applicable Wage Order, one
additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that rest
period was not provided.

125. As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according to proof at trial,

and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of suit.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide Accurate Itemized Statements
(Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226)
(Alleged By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against all Defendants)
126. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this
Complaint.

127. Cal. Labor Code § 226 provides that an employer must furnish éamployees with an
|

“accurate itemized” statement in writing showing:
i.  Gross wages earned,

11 |
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il. (2) total hours worked by the employee, except for any|employee whose

compensation is solely based on a salary and who is exempt from payment of
overtime under subdivision (a) of Section 515 or any appliéable order of the
Industrial Welfare Commission, |

iii.  the number of piecerate units earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee
is paid on a piece-rate basis, '

iv.  all deductions, provided that all deductions made on written ordeErs of the employee
may be aggregated and shown as one item,

v.  net wages eamed,

vi.  the inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is paid;,

vii.  the name of the employee and his or her social security numéer, except that by
January 1, 2008, only the last four digits of his or her social seciirity number of an
employee identification number other than social security 11umi)cr may be shown
on the itemized statement,

vili.  the name and address of the legal entity that is the employer, aqd

ix.  all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and :the corresponding

number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the employee.
128. During the CLASS PERIOD, when PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members missed meal and rest breaks. or were paid inaccurate mislsed meal and rest
period premiums, or were not paid for all hours worked, DEFENDANT alsé failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with complete a'pd accurate wage
statements which failed to show, among other things, the total hours worked and all applicable
hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding amount of time worked at each
hourly rate, and correct rates of pay for penalty payments or missed meal and rest periods. In
addition to the foregoing, DEFENDANT failed to provide itemized w%ge statements to
PLAINTIFFS and members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS that complied Wiﬂl‘l the requirements

of California Labor Code Section 226. J:

1
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129. DEFENDANT knowingly and intentionally failed to comply w!ith Cal. Lab. Codel
§ 226, causing injury and damages to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of'?he CALIFORNIA
CLASS. These damages include, but are not limited to, costs expended calcillating the cotrect
wages for all missed meal and rest breaks and the amount of employment tax‘es which were not
properly paid to state and federal tax authorities. These damages are difficult to estimate.
Therefore, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLLASS may elect to
recover liquidated damages of fifty dollars ($50.00) for the initial pay period in which the
violation occurred, and one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each violation in a subsequent pay
period pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 226, in an amount according to proof at tl{e time of trial (but
in no event more than four thousand dollars (84,000.00) for PLAINTIFFS and each respective
member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS herein).

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Reimburse Empleyees For Required Expenses
(Cal. Lab. Code §§ 2802)
(Alleged By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against all Defendants)

130. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this
Complaint.

131. Cal. Lab. Code § 2802 provides, in relevant part, that:

An employer shall indemnify his or her employee for all necessary exp:enditures or losses

incurred by the employee in direct consequence of the discharge of his or her duties, or of

his or her obedience to the directions of the employer, even though unlawful, unless the
employee, at the time of obeying the directions, believed them to be unlawful

132.  From time-to-time during the CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANTS violated Cal.
Lab. Code § 2802, by failing to indemnify and reimburse PLAINTIFFS and t1:1e members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS for required expenses incurred in the discharge of tll‘leir job duties for
DEFENDANTS’ benefit. DEFENDANTS failed to reimburse PLAINTIFFS arlld the members of

the CALIFORNIA CLASS for expenses which included, but were not limited ;co, costs related to
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using their personal cellular phones all on behalf of and for the benefit of DEFENDANTS.
Specifically, PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS|were required by

DEFENDANT to use their personal cell phones to execute their essential job duties on behalf of
DEFENDANT. DEFENDANT’s uniform policy, practice and procedure was to not reimbursei
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for expenses re!sulting from using
their personal cellular phones for DEFENDANT within the course and scope otl' their employment
for DEFENDANT. These expenses were necessary to complete their principal job duties.
DEFENDANT are estopped by DEFENDANT’s conduct to assert any waiver of their expectation.
Although these expenses were necessary expenses incurred by PLAINTIFFS and the members of
the CALIFORNIA CLASS, DEFENDANT failed to indemnify and reimburse PLAINTIFF and
the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for these expenses as an employe;r is required to do
under the laws and regulations of California.

133.  PLAINTIFFS therefore demand reimbursement on behalf of the members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS for expenditures or losses incurred in the discharge tileir job duties and
on behalf of DEFENDANT, or his/her obedience to the directions of DEFENDANT, with interest
at the statutory rate and costs under Cal. Lab. Code § 2802.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Pay Wages When Due
(Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202, 203) .
(Alleged by PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against alli Defendants)

134,  PLAINTIFFS, and thg: other members of the CALIFORNIA CI;ASS, reallege and

incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior Iparagraphs of this

Complaint. !
135. Cal. Lab. Code § 200 provides that: | ;

As used in this article: '

(d) "Wages" includes all amounts for labor performed by employees of every
description, whether the amount is fixed or ascertained by the standard of time,
task, piece, Commission basis, or other method of calculation.

/11
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(e) "Labor" includes labor, work, or service whether rendered ori performed under
contract, subcontract, partnership, station plan, or other agrelernent if the to be
paid for is performed personally by the person demanding payment,

|

136. Cal. Lab. Code § 201 provides, in relevant part, that “If an employer discharges

an employee, the wages earned and unpaid.at the time of discharge are; due and payable

immediately.”

137. Cal. Lab. Code § 202 provides, in relevant part, that: i

If an employee not having a written contract for a definite perlod quits his or her
employment, his or her wages shall become due and payable not later than 72 hours
thereafter, unless the employee has given 72 hours previous notice of his or her intention to |
quit, in which case the employee is entitled to his or her wages at the time of quitting.
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an employee who quits without providing a 72-
hour notice shall be entitled to receive payment by mail if he or she so requests and
designates a mailing address. The date of the mailing shall constitute the date of payment
for purposes of the requirement to provide payment within 72 hours of the notice of quitting.

138. There was no definite term in PLAINTIFFS® or any CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members’ employment contract.

139. Cal. Lab. Code § 203 provides:

If an employer willfully fails to pay, without abatement or reduction, in accordance with
Sections 201, 201.5, 202, and 205.5, any wages of an employee who is discharged or who
quits, the wages of the employee shall continue as a penalty from the due date thereof at the
same rate until paid or until an action therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not
continue for more than 30 days.

140. The employment of PLAINTIFFS and many CALIFORNIA CLASS Members
termmated and DEFENDANT has not tendered payment of wages to these employees who
missed meal and rest breaks, as required by law. !

141.  Therefore, as provided by Cal Lab. Code § 203, on behalf of 'themselvcs and the
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS whose employment has ended, PLAINTIFFS demand up
to thirty (30) days of pay as penalty for not paying all wages due at time of termination for alll
employees who terminated employment during the CLASS PERIOD and demand an accounting

and payment of all wages due, plus interest and statutory costs as allowed by law.

11 :
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NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Wages During Employment
(Cal. Lab. Code §§ 204 and 210)
(Alleged by PLAINTIFF and the CALIFORNIA CLASS against all Dcisfendants)

142. PLAINTIFF, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior i:)aragraphs of this
Complaint. !

143. Labor Code section 204 requires employees 1o be paid wagesi at least twice. per
month. If an employer fails to pay wages during the proper pay period, the elmployee is entitled
to a penalty of $100 for an initial violation and $200 for each subsequent or willful, or intentional
violation. Additionally, the employee is entitled to 25% of the amount unlawfully withheld.

144. DEFENDANTS failed to properly and timely compensate PLAINTIFF and
CALIFORNIA CLASS members all wages earned during their pay period(s).

145. DEFENDANTS?’ acts were willful and/or mtentional.

146. As aresult of DEFENDANTS’ conduct, PLAINTIFF and CALIFORNIA CLASS
members are entitled to the penalty set forth in section 210 o the Labor Code.

147. PLAINTIFF and CALIFORNIA CLASS members request relief as
described ih more detail below in the prayer.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Civil Penalties Pursuant to Private Attorneys General Act I(“PAGA”)

[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 2698, et seq.] ;
(By PLAINTIFFS and AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES and Against All EDEFENbANTS)-
148. PLAINTIFFS and the AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES reallege a'ﬁd incorporate by this
reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this Complaint.
149. PAGA is a mechanism by which the State of California itself clan enforce state Iai:)or
laws through the employee suing under the PAGA who do so as the proxy or agent of the state's

labor law enforcement agencies. An action to recover civil penalties under PAGA is fundamentally

a law enforcement action designed to protect the public and not to benefit private parties. The
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purpose of the PAGA is not to recover damages or restitution, but to create a means of "deputizing"

citizens as private attorneys general to enforce the Labor Code. In enacting PAGA, the California

Legislature specified that "it was ... in the public interest to allow aggrieved employees, acting as
!

private attorneys general to recover civil penalties for Labor Code violations ..." Stats. 2003, ch.

|
906, § 1. Accordingly, PAGA claims cannot be subject to arbitration. i

150. PLAINTIFFS bring this Representative Action on behalf of thla State of California
with respect to themselves and all other current and former AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES
employed by DEFENDANTS during the PAGA PERIOD. ?

151. At all relevant times, for the reasons described herein, and other!s, PLAINTIFFS and
the AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES were aggrieved employees of DEFENbANTS within the

meaning of Labor Code Section 2699(c).

152. Labor Code Sections 2699(a) and (g) authorize an AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEE, like \
PLAINTIFF, on behalf of themselves and other current or former elmployees, to bring a civil action
to recover civil penalties pursuant to the procedures specified in Labor Code Section 2699.3

153. PLAINTIFFS MARISCAL and PLAINTIFF GARCIA <I:0mplied with the
procedures for bringing suit spec‘i.ﬁ‘ed in Labor Code Section 2699.3. I‘;‘LAINITFF ROJAS
complied with the procedures for bringing suit specified in Labor Code Siection 2699.3. By
certified letter, return receipt requested, dated July 13. 2022.and August 11,%2022, PLAINTIFES
MARISCAL, GARCIA and ROJAS gave written notice to the Labor and Worikforce Developrneint
Agency (“LWDA”) and to DEENDANTS of the specific provisions of the Lzélbor Code alleged to
have been violated, including the facts and theories to support the alleged vio:lations '

[54. As of the date of this complaint, more than sixty-five (65) days after serving the
LWDA with notice of DEFENDANT S violations, the LWDA has not prov1ded any notice by
certified mail of its intent to investigate the DEFENDANT’S alleged v1olat10ns as mandated by
Labor Code Section 2699.3(a)(2)(A). Accordingly, pursuant to Labor Code Selctlon 2699.3(&)(2)1}\,

PLAINTIFF may commence and is authorized to pursue this cause of action.

155. Pursuant to Labor Code Sections 2699(a) and (f), PLAINTIFF and the
AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES are entitled to civil penalties for DEFENDANTS’ violations of
Labor Code Section 201, 201.3, 202, 203, 204, 210, 218.5, 218.6, 221, 226,(226.2, 226.3, 226.‘7,
246,510,512, 558, 1174(d), 1174.5, 1194, 1197, 1197.1, 1197.14, 1198, 119;9, 2802 and 2804 in
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the following amounts:

a.

For violation of Labor Code Sections 201, 202, 203, and 204, one hundred
dollars ($100) for each AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEE per pay period for the
initial violation and two hundred dollars ($200) for A(erRIEVED
EMPLOYEE per pay period for each subsequent violatton [penalty per Labor
Code Section 2699()(2)]; |

. For violations of Labor Code Sectton 226(a). a civil penalty in the amount of

|
two hundred fifty dollars ($250) for each AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEE for any

initial violation and one thousand dollars for each subsequelilt violation
[penalty per Labor Code Section 226.3); '
For violations of Labor Code Sections 204, a civil penalty in thei amount of
one hundred dollars ($100) for each AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEE fo!r any initial
violation and two hundred dollars ($200) for AGGRIEVED EMP!LOYEE for
each subsequent violation [penalty per Labor Code Section 210]; ;

For violations of Labor Code Sectipns 226.7, 510 and 512, a civi;l penalty in
the amount of fifty dollars (850) for each underpaid AGGRIEVED
EMPLOYEE for the initial violation and hundred dollars ($10:0) for each
underpaid AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEE for each subsequent violation [penalty
per Labor Code Section 558]; |

For violations of Labor Code Section 2269(a), a civil penalty in thie amount of
two hundred fifty dollars ($250) per AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEE p!er violation
in an initial citation and one thousand dollars ($1,000) per A(.:?GRIEVED
EMPLOYEE for each subsequent violation {penalty per Labor C!ode Section
226.3]; 7 !

For violations of Labor Code Sections 1194, 1197, 1198 and 1?199, a civil
penalty in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100) per AC!iGRTEVED
EMPLOYEE per pay period for the initial violation and two hundred dollars
fifty ($250) per AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEE per pay periold for each
|

subsequent violation [penalty per Labor Code Section].

For all provisions of the Labor Code for which civil penalty is not|specifically
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provided, Labor Code § 2699(f) imposes upon Defendant a penalty of one

hundred dollars ($100) for each AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEE per pay period '

for the initial violation and two hundred dollars ($200) for each A(IRGRIEVED

EMPLOYEE per pay period for each subsequent violation. PLAWTIFF and

the AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES are entitled to an award of] | reasonable

attorney’s fees and costs in connection with their claims for civil penalties .

pursuant to Labor Code Section 269%(g)(1). |

156. To the extent that any of the conduct and violations alleged 1:1erein did not affect

PLAINTIFFS during the PAGA PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS seek penalties for Lhose violations that
affected other AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES. (Carrington v. Starbuck.%' Corp. (2018) 30
Cal.App.5th 504, 519; See also Huff' v. Securitas Security Services USA, Inc. !(2018) 23 Cal. App.
5th 745, 751 [“PAGA allows an “aggrieved employee”™—a person affected b'}y at least one Labor
Code violation committed by an employer—to pursue penalties for all the Labor Code violations

committed by that employer.”], Emphasis added, reh'g denied (June 13, 2018).)

Iy
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS pray for a judgment against each Deft‘indant, jointly and:

severally, as follows:

1.

On behalf of the CALIFORNIA CLASS:

a. That the Court certify the First Cause of Action asserled by the CALIFORNIA

I
CLASS as a class action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § Z|582;

|
b. An order temporarily, preliminarily and permanently enjoining and restraining

DEFENDANTS from engaging in similar unlawful conduct as 1set forth herein;

An order requiring DEFENDANTS to pay all overtime wéges and all sums
i "

unlawfully withheld from compensation due to PLAINTIFF and the other members

of the CALIFORNIA CLASS; and |

|
. Restitutionary disgorgement of DEFENDANT’S ill-gotten gaiils into a fluid fund

for restitution of the sums incidental to DEFENDANTS’' violations due to

PLAINTIFFS and to the other members of the CALIFORNIA ¢LASS.

2. On behalf of the CALIFORNIA CLASS: '

a. That the Court certify the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, S'eventh, Eighth, and

|
Ninth Causes of Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a class action

pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382; l

. Compensatory damages, according to proof at trial, inclu(;iing compensatory
i

damages for overtime compensation and separately owed rést periods, due to
|
|

PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, during the

applicable CLASS PERIOD plus interest thereon at the statutory rate;

. Meal and rest period compensation pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code: §§ 226.7, 512 and

the applicable IWC Wage Order; ' :

. The greater of all actual damages or fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay period in

which a violation occurs and one hundred dollars ($100) per e‘ach member of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS for each violation in a subsequent pay period, not exceeding

an aggregate penalty of four thousand dollars ($4,000), and an award of costs for
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violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226

e. The wages of all terminated employees from the CALH?OIFNIA CLASS as a
penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paic;i or until an actiqn
therefore is commenced, in accordance with Cal. Lab, Code § ?:.03.

3. On behalf of the State of Calilf'ornia and with respect to !all AGGRIEVED

EMPLOYEES: |
a. Recovery of civil penalties as prescribed by the Labor Code% Private Attorneys

General Act 0of 2004 l

4. On all claims:
a. An award of interest, including prejudgment interest at the legal rate;
b. Such other and further reliet as the Court deems just and equitaPle; and

|
c. An award of penalties, attorneys’ fees and costs of suit, as allowable under the law.

1
[
DATED: March 26, 2024 '

ZAKAY LAW GROUP, APLC

. “
0 I o ———

Shani O. Zakay |
Attorney for PLAINTIFF

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFFS demand a jury trial on issues triable to a jury.

DATED: March 26, 2024

ZAKAY LAW GROUP, APL.C

By: - =

Shani O. Zakay
Attorney for PLAINTIFF
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